
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Mar 07 2024 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (Keystone Heights Jr./Sr. High School Band and Advanced Guitar Class, Justin Coker and David Golden,
Music Teachers)

Invocation (Pastor Ryan Begue, First Baptist Church Keystone Heights)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize Outstanding 2023 - 2024 School Volunteers

2. Recognition of 2023-2024 School Related Employee of the Year Teacher of the Year, and Rookie of the Year

3. Clay Education Foundation Recognition of Mrs. Bolla, Board Member

Presenters

School Showcase (Keystone Heights Jr./Sr. High School, Laurie Burke, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

4. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

5. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

6. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

7. D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

8. D5 - Human Resources Special Action E

Business Affairs

9. D6 - 2024-2025 Allocation Package Pending Board Approval

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

Page 1 of 314

DRAFT



10. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on January 23, 2024; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on
February 1, 2024

2024 Feb 1 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2024 Jan 23 Board Workshop.pdf

2024 Feb 1 Regular Meeting.pdf

11. C2 - Proclamation #24-12, Clay County Agricultural Fair

Proclamation 24-12 2024 Clay County Fair.pdf

Information Technology Services

12. C3 - Endpoint and Network Security

Human Resources

13. C4 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 2_19_24.pdf

14. C5 - Appointment of Clay County School Board's CCEA and CESPA Bargaining Team Members for 2024-2025

2024-2025 District Bargaining Teams.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

15. C6 - Elementary Student Out of State Travel

LAE FIELD TRIP OUT OF STATE.pdf

OPE FIELD TRIP OUT OF STATE.pdf

DOE FIELD TRIP OUT OF STATE.pdf

16. C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

March 2024 Student Travel.pdf

17. C8 - Proposed AMIkids-Clay County Employee and Student Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year

AMIkids-Clay County 2024-2025 School Calendar.pdf

18. C9 - Proposed PACE Employee and Student Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year

Pace Clay 2024-2025 Academic Calendar.pdf

19. C10 - School Improvement Plan Approval

SJCFI.pdf

SJCOP.pdf

Instruction-Adult Education

20. C11 - Memorandum of Understanding between School Board of Clay County and Clay County Sheriff's Office

MOU School Board of Clay Cty and Clay County Sheriff's Office.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

21. C12 -  Proclamation #24-13 to Establish School Social Work Week

2024 School Social Work Week Proclamation.pdf
Page 2 of 314

DRAFT



Business Affairs

22. C13 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

03.07.24 - 23-24 Allocation Summary.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

23. C14 - Monthly Financial Reports for January, 2024

January 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

January 2024 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent $50,000 to $100,000.pdf

24. C15 - Budget Amendment Report for January 31, 2024

23-24 Budget Amendment January 2024.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

25. C16 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2024

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2024.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

26. C17 - Contract Renewal - County-Wide Architectural Services up to $4 Million Contract Award

27. C18 - BID Award

28. C19 - Contract Renewal - Independent Auditing Services

29. C20 - Contract - Neola

240124 Neola _ Draft.pdf

Operations-Facilities

30. C21 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 3.7.24

31. C22 - Middleburg High School Restroom Renovations Contract Award

Contract for MHS Restroom Renovations

32. C23 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Wilkinson Junior High School
Fire Alarm Replacement

33. C24 - Lakeside Junior High School Restroom/Locker Room Renovations Contract Award

LSJ Restroom.Locker Room Renovations Contract.pdf

34. C25 - Classroom Addition Oakleaf Junior High School Construction Manager Contract Award

35. C26 - Classroom Addition Lake Asbury Junior High School Construction Manager Contract Award

CCSD LAJ Classroom Addition - CM Contract PMC Signed.pdf

36. C27 - Annual Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) Certification

FISH Certification 2024.pdf

Page 3 of 314

DRAFT



37. C28 - Clay High School Parking Lot Renovation/Redesign Contract Award

38. C29 - Change Order #3 for Clay High School Gym Renovations

CO #3 CHS Gym Renovations.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize Outstanding 2023 - 2024 School Volunteers

Description
Yearly, Clay County nominates to the state outstanding volunteers of the year in the Youth, Adult, and Senior Adult categories.
 The School Board will recognize the 2023-2024 Clay County winners.  Clay County's Senior Adult nominee was selected as one
of Florida's Outstanding 2023-2024 Volunteers.  This award recognizes their contribution to the academic achievement of our
students and their assistance in helping schools create a positive learning environment.
Youth - 
Adult - 
Senior - 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Recognition Only

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent, david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
N/A

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of 2023-2024 School Related Employee of the Year Teacher of the Year, and Rookie of the Year

Description
Recognizing the School Related Employee of the Year, Teacher of the Year, and Rookie of the Year

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes
Recognizing the School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year

Strategic Plan Goal
5.1.11 Develop and implement a school and district-wide employee recognition program.

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Clay Education Foundation Recognition of Mrs. Bolla, Board Member

Description
Clay Education Foundation Board of Directors will recognize Mrs. Bolla for her service to the Clay Education Foundation Board
over the past eight (8) years.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 8 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 9 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 10 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 11 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D5 - Human Resources Special Action E

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 12 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D6 - 2024-2025 Allocation Package Pending Board Approval

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2024-25 school year. The
School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected on Attachment

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 13 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on January 23, 2024; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on February 1,
2024

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2024 Feb 1 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2024 Jan 23 Board Workshop.pdf

2024 Feb 1 Regular Meeting.pdf

Page 14 of 314

DRAFT



Date: Jan 23 2024 (9:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Walnut Street and Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs, FL

January 23, 2024 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen,
District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Workshop Items  (Workshop items were addressed in the following order: #2, #3, #1, #4, #5)

1. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on February 1, 2024

February-1-2024-regular-school-board-meeting_agenda_packet.pdf

Minutes:

Recognitions and Presentations:

Recognition of Academic Team Champions - no discussion;
Recognition of 2023-2024 School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year Finalists - no discussion;
Recognition/Ribbon-Cutting of Student Art Gallery Wall - no discussion;
Fine Arts Recognition of All-County Events - no discussion;
Career and Technical Education Presenters - Superintendent Broskie noted a $1.7M grant awarded for advanced
manufacturing new programs within the CTE department and a $1.2M grant awarded for elementary music education; 

Discussion Agenda:

D1 Human Resources Special Action A - no discussion;
D2 Human Resources Special Action B - no discussion;
D3 Human Resources Special Action C - no discussion;

Consent Agenda:

C1 Minutes of School Board Workshop on December 19, 2023; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on January
4, 2024 - no discussion;
C2 Employee Work Calendar for 2024-2025 - no discussion;
C3 Revised Student Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year - no discussion;
C4 Bettercloud - Mrs. Hanson requested that agenda items contain the previous cost of proposed purchase within the financial
impact portion of the agenda item so the board is aware of the current expense when considering the proposed expenditure;
C5 Personnel Consent Agenda - Mrs. Gilhousen asked how many students would generate another administrative position; Mr.
Broskie noted that those formulas would be examined when the allocation package is brought forward and he anticipates
meeting with board members individually to provide information earlier; 
C6 Complete Salary Schedule 2023-2024 - Mrs. Hanson asked about when personnel would receive their approved increases
and how the effective and highly effective teacher ratings affect their pay moving forward; Mr. Broskie indicated raises for
instructional employees would be in the 1/31 paycheck and that their rating remained in their base salary and can be increased
again; Mr. Broskie, in response to the board's request for more input in labor negotiations, will set up a full day meeting on April
10th (shade meeting) to obtain board direction on contract negotiations; Mrs. Hanson desires more frequent executive
sessions with a goal for the county being to ratify contracts before the school year begins; Mr. Broskie advised additional time
allows the district to provide for the maximum amount of increase to employees as funds are only projections earlier in the
year; Mrs. Hanson would like a research team to figure out how to reach salary agreement prior to the year beginning; there
may be a general meeting in addition to the shade meeting in order to discuss general labor negotiations; Jeremiah Blocker,
School Board Attorney, will work with the labor attorney to develop an agenda; Mrs. Gilhousen requested the board members
receive a paper copy of the current contract so they may begin to review in anticipation of negotiating a new contract; 
C7 K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel - no discussion;

Page 15 of 314

DRAFT



C8 2024 Proposed Summer Programs Calendars (Secondary, VPK, and 3rd Grade Reading Camp, ESE Extended School
Year) - no discussion;
C9 Proclaim February 2024 as Black History Month in Clay County Public Schools - no discussion;
C10 Charter School Contract Renewal:Florida Cyber Charter Academy (FLCCA) - no discussion;
C11 Proclamation #24-10 for Career and Technical Education Month - no discussion;
C12 Approval to Advertise the Adoption and Set the Public Hearing for April 4, 2024 of K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science
Materials - no discussion;
C13 Proclamation #24-11 for National School Counseling Week - no discussion;
C14 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024 - no discussion;
C15 Monthly Financial Reports for December, 2023 - no discussion;
C16 Budget Amendment Report for December 31, 2023 - no discussion;
C17 Deletion of Certain Items Report January, 2024 - no discussion;
C18 BID Renewal - no discussion; Mrs. Skipper asked when the grass-cutting contracts are renewing and Mrs. Ellis advised
she would get her that information;
C19 Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Oakleaf Junior High School - no discussion;
C20 Change Order #5 (Direct Purchasing) for Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms - no
discussion;
C21 Pre-Qualification for Contractors - no discussion;
C22 Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park Elementary School Restroom
Renovation - no discussion;
C23 Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Lakeside Elementary School Restroom
Renovations - no discussion;
C24 Resolution for disposal of Portable Classroom and Its Associated Equipment, Including Ramps and Stairs Located at
Charles E. Bennett Elementary School - no discussion;
C25 Purchase Agreement for Portable Classroom and its Associated Equipment, including Ramps and Stairs Located at
Charles E. Bennett Elementary School - no discussion;
C26 Purchase Agreement for .16 Acres at Montclair Elementary School - no discussion;
C27 Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Clay High School Gym Renovations - no discussion;
C28 Change Order #1 for Clay High School Gym Renovations - no discussion;
C29 Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for S. Bryan Jennings Elementary School Fire
Alarm Repair/Replacement - no discussion;
C30 Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Media Center
Renovations - no discussion;
C31 Change Order #5 for Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion - no discussion;
C32 Change Order #2 for Fleming Island High School Batting Practice Building and Erosion Control - no discussion;

2. Cenergistic Cost Savings Presentation

Cenergistic - Board Workshop 1.23.24.pdf

Minutes:

Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, introduced Steve Jones, Regional Vice President, Cenergistic, who shared the
attached visual presentation providing an overview of the district's cost savings and reported on the value of having this energy
program.  Currently, 28 of the district's schools have earned the Energy STAR certification demonstrating their commitment to high
standards in energy conservation.  Total energy savings to date, since 2016 when Clay County District Schools began utilizing the
program, are $11,036,310.  

 

3. Presentation for Bonding - Ford and Associates

COPS 2024 Workshop Presentation - 1-23-24.pdf

Minutes:

Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, Will Reed, Executive Director, Ford and Associates, and Lance Addison,
Coordinator of Facilities Planning, shared the attached presentation re a Certificate of Participation (COP) for classroom wings at
Oakleaf Junior High and Lake Asbury Junior High as well as a future high school.  Information was provided re the district's history in
the utilization of COPs and current debt service, why a COP is needed (growth, capacity, portable reduction, and the prohibitive costs
of new school construction), projected growth vs capacity, and the process for obtaining a COP.  Mrs. Ellis indicated that the county's
growth reflects a need for additional school facilities and the goal is to strategically leverage debt over time.  

Board discussion included the number of classrooms that will be housed in the proposed wings, the number of additional students
that can be accommodated in various schools, the goal to continue to reduce portable classrooms, the desire to create small
communities by grades within the larger growing schools by intentionally planning and employing creativity.

Mr. Reed indicated the goal is to bring documents for approval in March to determine if the board wants to issue COPs.  Mrs. Skipper
asked about the possibility of re-financing if interest rates decrease and was advised the bonds may be re-financed after the first 10

Page 16 of 314

DRAFT



years.  Mr. Reed's recommendation is to use the fixed, not variable, rate due to the unpredictability of interest rates.  The proposed
classrooms would be open in August 2025 and the process may begin as soon as funds are there.

 

4. Review of Elementary Supplemental Math Program

i-Ready Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Govinda Poor, Math Curriculum Specialist, provided an overview (attached) of iReady, an elementary supplemental math program
implemented in all 28 elementary schools.  She reviewed the teacher feedback survey results, quantity of time spent in each portion
of the program (direct, small-group, and online personalized instruction), and discussed the program being aligned to Florida
benchmarks.

Additional board discussion included how often feedback is obtained from teachers to know if they are utilizing the program correctly
or need support, how the curriculum coaches and math coaches collaborate and support teachers, how the program may be utilized
for district monitoring by providing an overview of how students are performing, and that teachers from all grade levels were sampled. 
Mr. Broskie noted that the district has always done a return on investment study of its programs and that Clay County is 9th in the
state of Florida in mathematics.

A recess was taken at 11:47 a.m. and the meeting reconvened at 12:03 p.m.

5. Discussion of Revisions to Procedures Manual for Library Media Services

23-24 Procedures Manual for Library Media Services DRAFT.pdf

Minutes:

Michele Hanson, School Board Member, shared the attached visual presentation re proposed changes to the "Procedures Manual for
Library Media Services."  She reviewed the historical development and adoption of the current policy and stressed the importance of
holding community forums to bring diverse personalities and thoughts into the decision-making process.  She indicated that the
community understands that compromise leads to progress and stated she has also met with secondary media specialists to
understand the current process in order to untangle it.

Mr. Blocker noted the current document has a mix of policies and procedures, and that the goal is to extract a policy from which
procedures will follow.  The management of policy is critical with the superintendent having the ability to change procedure.  The
board discussed the possibility of using Neola to assist with creating consistent policy that remains statutorily compliant and that is
easily accessed via the district's website.

Mrs. Hanson discussed the starting point being the principal when deciphering the acceptability of books.  Options for book
challenges were proposed, including multiple challenges by an individual.  An option for expedited challenges was proposed.  Mrs.
Hanson stressed the need for sufficient policy and procedures, with built-in protections against challenges based on insufficiency. 
She proposed going back to the original 171 books for consideration to return those books to the shelves and then address 100 books
per month until the backlog has been managed.

Mrs. Clark appreciated all of Mrs. Hanson's efforts.  Mrs. Skipper noted that this policy needs to be fixed as soon as possible and
asked if the policy, with legal refinements, will hold from a legal standpoint.  Mr. Blocker indicated he will work with whatever the board
puts forth and will address some fine points to ensure the concepts are defensible.  He indicated that the board can not be removed
from the final decision, per the state, but duties can be delegated.  Once the board adopts the policy, the superintendent may develop
procedures.  Mr. Broskie noted the importance of having procedures in mind when forming the policy and thanked Mrs. Hanson for
the framework provided to move forward.  Mr. Blocker noted a potential challenge in pushing the responsibility down to the principal
level and stressed the importance of training and procedural development to ensure enforcement.  Mrs. Bolla appreciated all of Mrs.
Hanson's work and noted that she did hear concerns at the community meeting that reflected a split in opinions.

Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, advised that the policy approved by the board in April 2023 has been highly effective, allowing
challenges to be caught up.  Current policy is structured for the district to ensure calibration.  He proposed that the books currently in
the appellate process may have given the board pause because they may not want to appear to sanction those books as those books
may be questionable in their reflection of the community.  He advised there may be complications to the policy if all school principals
and media specialists (approximately 86 individuals) are involved.  Mrs. Hanson does not support the current policy approved in
April.  

Mrs. Hanson will meet with designated staff to review the proposed revisions in depth and a subsequent board workshop may also be
held to further discuss proposed revisions.

Questions from the Audience

6. Questions from the Audience

Minutes: Page 17 of 314

DRAFT



Pastor Jeffrey Dove questioned why a prior agenda item was removed from the consent agenda and Mr. Broskie responded that the
item required more thought.  Pastor Dove also questioned what he stated is a lack of diversity in administrators, and Mr. Broskie will
meet with him at a future time to discuss that question further. 

Superintendent Comments  (None)

School Board Attorney Comments

7. School Board Attorney Comments

Minutes:

Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney, indicated that he will be updating the board on negotiations with the Sheriff's department as
the proposed agreement continues to progress and jurisdictional issues are addressed.

He formally requested a shade meeting to discuss labor negotiations on 4/10/24 at 9:00 a.m. and also requested a shade meeting
that must be held prior to May to discuss litigation.

School Board Comments

8. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Bolla noted there will be a dinner at Panera on 1/30/24 to raise funds in support of the Dolly Parton Imagination Library.

Mrs. Skipper noted the next Community Forum will be held on February 13, 2024, on the topics of dress code and cell phone use. 
She also wants the board to discuss the current legal services situation now that Mr. Blocker has taken over the entire legal workload
in addition to addressing board policies and revising procedures.  She believes Mr. Blocker has overperformed and she would like to
address the current contract to provide additional attorneys for legal support so that those attorneys may address district needs while
Mr. Blocker works with board needs and indicated the negotiated contract amount needs to be addressed as soon as possible.

Mr. Blocker proposed establishing a legal office (a team) that would work to support the superintendent, district, and board, to address
legal issues appropriately.  Mrs. Hanson noted frequent interruptions to Mr. Blocker's work day by staff members.  Mr. Broskie
indicated he will work with Mr. Blocker to review the legal services contract and noted that a meeting was held on 1/11/24 to address
the structure of legal services.  Mr. Blocker would like to be entrusted with the resources and build the framework for the legal
department, indicating the district is not currently paying market rate for that level of services.

Mrs. Clark will provide a self-insurance update at the board meeting and requested that legal services negotiations be wrapped up
this month.

Mrs. Bolla requested the list of committee assignments, which Mrs. Gilhousen will finalize and provide.

Mrs. Skipper indicated that many PFAs would like to join together and become one PFA and proposed the idea of having a board
member liaison representative for that committee when formed.  

Mrs. Gilhousen proposed adjusting the workshop time.  Workshops will now begin at noon and the board requests presentations be
more succinct.

Adjournment  (2:56 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 18 of 314

DRAFT



Date: Feb 01 2024 (6:00 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

February 1, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Student Showcase  (Swimming Pen Creek Elementary Singing Otter Chorus, Courtney Holcombe, Music Teacher)

Invocation  (Russell Franklin, Regional Director. Foundations Christian Counseling)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2, Beth Clark, District 3; Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen,
District 5; Superintendent David Broskie)

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognition of Academic Team Champions

Minutes:

Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Education and Gregory Martin, Academic Team Coach, recognized the county academic team
participants and the junior high, junior high varsity, and varsity academic teams that won the county championship.

Junior High School Champion - Lakeside Junior High

Eli Swann
Aidan Watt
Sophia Jia
Blake Wiggains
Caleb Conner
Isabella Costea
William Summers
Kylie Manning
Natalie Stewart
Franchezscka Payumo
Brody Toves

High School Varsity Champion - Fleming Island High

Daric Boehmer
Zeinab Faraj
Michael Jiang
Joey Joseph
victor Aguilar
Nathan Alcudia
Kyleigh Bailey
Margaret Hughes
Valeryia Ivanova
Sam Nye
David Rafalski
Kevin Taing

High School Junior Varsity Champion - Fleming Island High

Danil Frakt
Tegan Olschewske
Kennedy Keuning Page 19 of 314

DRAFT



Shayla Abbas
Lincoln Bailey
Ethan Gartner
Evan Hanner
Sophia Jiang
Alex Kirk

All County Team

Abigail Downs - Oakleaf High  
Amara Lathan - Oakleaf High
Victor Aguilar - Fleming Island High
Pujan Patel - Oakleaf High
David Rafalski - Fleming Island High
Daric Boehmer - Fleming Island High
Claire Sheffler - Oakleaf High

2. Recognition of 2023-2024 School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year Finalists

Minutes:

Carolyn Krall, President of Clay Education Foundation honored the finalists for Teacher of the Year and Support-Related Employee of
the Year as follows:

Teacher of the Year Finalists:

Lisa Allen - Coppergate Elementary
Edwin Ormeo - Oakleaf High
Regina Bragg - Swimming Pen Creek Elementary
Allison Altwater - Spring Park Elementary
Robin Campbell - Wilkinson Junior High

Support Related Employee of the Year Finalists:

Philip Turturro - Doctors Inlet Elementary
Josephine Roquemore - Grove Park Elementary
Pamela Saxon - Keystone Heights Elementary
Shalaunda Delano - McRae Elementary
Andrea Wilson - Ridgeview High

3. Recognition/Ribbon-Cutting of Student Art Gallery Wall

2024_02_01 Fine Arts Highlights for SB Meeting.pdf

Minutes:

Karen McMillan, Coordinator of School Choice and Chris Gugel, Fine Arts Curriculum Specialist, lead a ribbon-cutting ceremony for
the new Student Art Gallery Wall in the boardroom.  The display will highlight student artwork from showcased schools each month.

4. Fine Arts Recognition of All-County Events

Page 20 of 314

DRAFT



Minutes:

Chris Gugel, Fine Arts Curriculum Specialist, recognized the following students for their participation in all-county and all-state events:

Ethan Donahoo - Middleburg High, All State TTBB Chorus
Michael Dryna - Middleburg High, All State Concet Choir
Calise Wheeler - Middleburg High, All State SSAA Choir
Nathan Reid - Fleming Island High, All State Symphonic Band
Alex Romer - Ridgeview High, All State High School Honor Band
Joseph Summers - Oakleaf Junior High, All State Middle School Honor Band
Samuel Elsberry - Ridgeview High, All State TTBB Chorus
Emmalee Garganus - Lake Asbury Junior High, All State Middle School Mixed Chorus
Brett Lewitzke - Lake Asbury Junior High, All State Middle School Mixed Chorus
Abigail Norrell, Lake Asbury Junior High, All State Middle School Mixed Chorus
Rebecca Robiou, Lake Asbury Junior High, All State Middle School Mixed Chorus
Aiden Schaeffer - Lake Asbury Junior High, All State Middle School Mixed Chorus
Kamryn Powers - Oakleaf High, All State SATB Mixed Ensemble
William Ross - Keystone Heights Junior/Senior High, All State High School Honor Band
Haley Bolam - Fleming Island High, All State SSAA Chorus

Presenters

5. Career and Technical Education Presenters

2024 CTE Month - Board Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Alice Paulk, Supervisor of Career and Technical Education shared the attached visual presentation highlighting the wide variety of
Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs offered in Clay County Schools as well as the robust calendar of events featuring
CTE events.  Grants awarded for the introduction of new programs were discussed.  Kelly Mosley, Supervisor of Career and Technical
Education, at the invitation of Representative Aaron Bean, testified at a Congressional Subcommittee Hearing.  The board received
the 2024-2025 CTE's Course Selection Guide.

School Showcase  (Swimming Pen Creek Elementary, Cheryl Larson, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

6. Public Comment

Minutes:

Public speakers:

Justin Coker 
Tina Larsen 
Sandra Wiggains 
Kathryn Wright
Chad Robbins
Kristen Richard
Brett Pikuritz 
Paula Summers
Lindsay McDade
Katy Polk
Alex Buck
Bruce Friedman
Tara Richardson
Adam Warren
Constance Higginbotham 
Claire Sheffler 
Tanya Kacsan 
Adriana Jarquin 

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

7. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Special Action A (2).pdf (Confidential)
Page 21 of 314

DRAFT



Motion
Motion to Approve Human Resources Special Action A

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Michele Hanson
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

8. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action B.

9. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action C.

Business Affairs-Purchasing

10. D4 - BID Renewal

Minutes:

Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Chair, District 5, provided CE Form 8A Memorandum of Voting Conflict for State Officers and
recused herself from voting on this item.

Motion
Motion to Approve BID Renewal

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Mary Bolla
Second: Beth Clark
Ashley Gilhousen - Abstain
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

11. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on December 19, 2023; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on January 4,
2024

2023 Dec 19 Workshop.pdf

2024 Jan 4 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2024 Jan 4 Regular Meeting.pdf

12. C2 - Employee Work Calendar for 2024-2025

Employee Work Calendar - 2024-2025.pdf

13. C3 - Revised Student Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year
Page 22 of 314

DRAFT



2024-2025 Student Calendar..pdf

Information Technology Services

14. C4 - Bettercloud

240117 Bettercloud Contract Review Complete.pdf

Human Resources

15. C5 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda - 1_30_24.pdf

16. C6 - Complete Salary Schedule 2023-2024

2023-2024 Salary Schedule for Board Approval.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

17. C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

February 2024 Student Travel.pdf

18. C8 - 2024 Proposed Summer Programs Calendars (Secondary, VPK and 3rd Grade Reading Camp, ESE Extended School Year)

VPK & 3rd Grade Summer Reading Calendar 2024.pdf

Secondary Summer Programs Calendar 2024.pdf

2024 Extended School Year Summer Programs Calendar.pdf

19. C9 - Proclaim February 2024 as Black History Month in Clay County Public Schools

Black History Month Proclamation 2024 - Draft.pdf

20. C10 - Charter School Contract Renewal:Florida Cyber Charter Academy (FLCCA)

Florida Cyber Charter Academy Contract Renewal_ Criteria Evaluation (3).pdf

Florida Cyber Charter Academy_2024 Letter of Intent to Renew.pdf

21. C10 A - Preferred Physical Therapy Contract

Preferred Physical Therapy Agreement.pdf

Instruction-Career and Technical Education

22. C11 - PROCLAMATION #24-10 FOR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION MONTH

CTE Proclamation Feb 2024.pdf

Instruction-Instructional Resources

23. C12 - APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE THE ADOPTION AND SET THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR APRIL 4, 2024 OF K-12 SOCIAL
STUDIES AND K-12 SCIENCE MATERIALS

2023-2024 K-12 Social Studies Teacher Ranking Results.pdf

2023-2024 K-12 Science Preselection Committee Results.pdf

2023-2024 K-12 Social Studies and K-12 Science Adoption NOTICE OF APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE SB Policy.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

24. C13 - Proclamation #24-11 for National School Counseling Week

2024 National School Counseling Week Proclamation.docx.pdf

Business Affairs

25. C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

02.01.24 - 23-24 Allocation Summary.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

Page 23 of 314

DRAFT



26. C15 - Monthly Financial Reports for December, 2023

December 2023 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

December 2023 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed By Superintendent for $50,000 to $100,000.pdf

27. C16 - Budget Amendment Report for December 31, 2023

23-24 Budget Amendments December 2023.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

28. C17 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT JANUARY, 2024

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT JANUARY, 2024.pdf

Operations-Facilities

29. C18 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Oakleaf Junior High School.

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - OJH.pdf

30. C20 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 2.1.24.pdf

31. C19 - Change Order #5 (Direct Purchasing) for Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms

Change Order #5 (Direct Purchasing) KHE New Cafeteria Classrooms.pdf

32. C21 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park Elementary School Restroom
Renovation

33. C22 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Lakeside Elementary School Restroom
Renovations

34. C23 - Resolution for Disposal of Portable Classroom and Its Associated Equipment, Including Ramps and Stairs Located at
Charles E. Bennett Elementary School

Resolution to Dispose of Portable & Ramps & Stairs 2.1.24.pdf

Portable, Ramp & Stairs Contract Review Approval.pdf

35. C24 - Purchase Agreement for Portable Classroom and its Associated Equipment, Including Ramps and Stairs Located at Charles
E. Bennett Elementary School

Purchase Agreement for Portable & Ramps & Stairs 2.1.24.pdf

Portable, Ramp & Stairs Contract Review Approval.pdf

36. C25 - Purchase Agreement for .16 Acres at Montclair Elementary School

Purchase Agreement MCE 2.1.24.pdf

37. C26 - Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Clay High School Gym Renovations

CO #2 CHS Gym Renovation.pdf

38. C27 - Change Order #1 for Clay High School Gym Renovations

CO #1 CHS Gym Renovation.pdf

39. C28 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for S. Bryan Jennings Elementary School Fire
Alarm Repair/Replacement

40. C29 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Media Center
Renovations

41. C30 - Change Order #5 for Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion

CO #5 MHS Cafeteria Expansion.pdf

42. C31 - Change Order #2 for Fleming Island High School Batting Practice Building and Erosion Control

Page 24 of 314

DRAFT



CO #2 FIH Batting Practice Building & Erosion Control.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

43. Adoption of Consent Agenda

Motion
Motion to Adopt Consent Agenda

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Michele Hanson
Second: Mary Bolla
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Mary Bolla - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye

CCEA Update  (Heather Kastelz)

CESPA Update  (None)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

44. Superintendent's Update

Superintendent's Update 2-01-2024.pdf

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie shared the attached visual presentation highlighting the following:

Schools of the Month
Superintendent's Super Students of the Month
CTE Month
Black History Month
Fine Arts in Clay
Celebrate Literacy Week
District Accreditation
Upcoming Events

School Board Attorney Remarks

45. School Board Attorney Comments

Minutes:

Jeremiah Blocker, School Board Attorney, provided an update on negotiations for the transition of safety and security services to the
Clay County Sheriff's Office. It is anticipated that a transition funding agreement will be put before the board at a special meeting on
2/27/24 for their approval.

School Board Member Remarks

46. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Bolla reflected on one of her key election promises to work with all Clay County students.  She recently attended the W.E. Cherry
Elementary spelling bee, All-County music opportunities, Early Literacy Night, reading at Doctors Inlet Elementary, Wilkinson
Elementary, and Spring Park Elementary.  She participated in judging for FCCLA at Ridgeview High, a Fleming Island High poetry out
loud competition, and the interviews for Teacher of the Year Apple Awards.  She noted the additional fund-raising to expand the Dolly
Parton Imagination Library and requested that Superintendent Broskie explore and address the concerns stated by a public speaker
re Argyle Elementary School.

Mrs. Hanson appreciated the great ideas brought by stakeholders during her office hours.  She and Mrs. Skipper will co-sponsor part
1 of a disciplinary task force to include dress code and cell phones to ensure students have uninterrupted quality learning.  This forum
will take place on 2/13/24 at 6:00 p.m. at the Teacher Learning Center.  She recommended that, as the new procedures manual will
be created to address media books, all librarians should be included because they have shared great ideas to be more efficient in

Page 25 of 314

DRAFT



their work.  She expressed the importance of sound policy to drive academics and appreciated the framework provided by NEOLA to
allow the proper formatting and guidelines for policy.  Mr. Blocker advised that NEOLA is a tool that provides different policy updates
and that can incorporate the board's own flavor while staying within FL statute.  Mr. Broskie indicated he can provide some additional
information re NEOLA at the next board workshop.

Mrs. Clark is happy that the book policy will be discussed at the next workshop and indicated that books are not being banned,
statutory guidelines are simply being followed.  She is pleased with the transition to be self-insured and is excited to see where the
Fine Arts programs will go, stressing the importance of these opportunities.  She enjoyed participating in Literacy Week.

Mrs. Skipper expressed an interest in utilizing the vacant properties at Fleming Island High for a performing arts structure.  She also
extended personal appreciation for the CTE programs that have benefited her family.  She included Rep. Aaron Bean in Literacy
Week and thanked him for his participation, noting that he is on the Education Committee in Washington.  She thanked Mr. Blocker for
his work in allowing the district to move forward in the right direction and would like to continue discussion and implementation of a
visitor policy.

Mrs. Gilhousen indicated she is looking to Mr. Blocker to steer the ship re bringing up policy, relying on him to prioritize policies and
bring them to the board.  Mr. Blocker indicated he would prioritize policies and the current work with time sensitivity to the sheriff
transition.  He suggested considering a workshop to review the media policy.  Board consensus was to review the book policy at the
workshop on February 27th.  Mrs. Gilhousen will speak with board members following the workshop re their committee assignments.

Adjournment  (9:14 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 26 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Proclamation #24-12, Clay County Agricultural Fair

Description
Significant events that affect the lives of Clay County students and employees deserve to be recognized by action.  By approving
this Proclamation, the School Board will show support and recognition of the Clay County Agricultural Fair.  
Clay County District Schools will celebrate Fair Day on Friday, April 12, 2024.
 

Gap Analysis
The School Board endorses this event and hereby encourages all citizens to attend.  The Fair serves as a showcase for Clay
County agriculture with emphasis on educational experiences.  Clay County youth organizations such as 4-H clubs and Future
Farmers of America play an important part in the Fair.

Previous Outcomes
The Fair provides fun and entertainment, as well as educational experiences.

Expected Outcomes
The School Board will continue to support the Clay County Agricultural Fair, and through the Fair, continue to provide fun
entertainment and educational experiences, serving as a showcase for Clay County agriculture.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Proclamation #23-09, 2023 Clay County Agricultural Fair

Contact
Superintendent David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Proclamation 24-12 2024 Clay County Fair.pdf

Page 27 of 314

DRAFT



SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION # 24-12 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, Clay County will hold its 38th annual Agricultural Fair on April 4- April 14, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the School Board of Clay County endorses this event with the Clay County Fair Association and hereby 
encourages all citizens to attend and enjoy this educational and entertaining event; and 
 
WHEREAS, this fair will serve as a showcase for Clay County agriculture with emphasis on educational experience 
concerning Clay County’s leading industry; and 
 
WHEREAS, various Clay County youth organizations such as 4-H clubs and Future Farmers of America play an 
important part in the Fair; and 
 
WHEREAS, the School Board of Clay County encourages all citizens to demonstrate their support of our youth 
by taking an active interest in their activities at the Fair; and 
 
WHEREAS, Agricultural Fairs provide fun and entertainment as well as education for the entire family; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Clay County Fair Board of Directors, committee members, patron life members and many 
volunteers have done an outstanding job of putting together the Clay County Agricultural Fair which will provide 
entertainment and educational experiences for children and adults of all ages. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, fully supports, celebrates, 
and encourages all citizens to attend and enjoy the 38th annual Clay County Agricultural Fair. 
 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 7th day of March, 2024. 
        
 

 
ATTEST:       
 
             
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
David S.Broskie                       Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools         
Clay County, Florida  

Page 28 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Endpoint and Network Security

Description
Endpoint Security applications are the applications that protect end-user devices from malicious activity. This includes antivirus,
antimalware, anti ransomware, etc.
Network Security applications protect the servers and infrastructure and help identify and isolate devices on the network that
don’t belong.
This purchase includes both Endpoint Security and Network Security applications and helps satisfy audit and insurance
requirements.
 

Gap Analysis
Without robust endpoint and network security, there is a risk to student, staff, and District data. A threat seen in the news recently
is ransomware attacks on school districts (hackers restrict access to district data and try to get districts to pay to get access back
to their data). Protection from ransomware and compliance with audit and insurance requirements is the focus of this purchase.

Previous Outcomes
The previous 3 year cost for Endpoint Protection was $123,414.00. This purchase is $110,869.82, which is a savings of
$12,544.18. Network Protection of this type is a new acquisition.

Expected Outcomes
This purchase will help ensure the safety of the CCDS devices and network including student data, which is a target of malicious
actors (hackers).

Strategic Plan Goal
GOAL 5 - Fiscal and Operational Efficiency
Strategy 5.4 Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.
Key Activity 5.4.1 Analyze our existing purchasing and contract procedures to create a more streamlined user-friendly process.
Strategy 5.5 Enhance the technology infrastructure in all school and district spaces to support teaching, learning,
communications, and operations.
Key Activity 5.5.4 Continue to provide all students and staff ubiquitous access to approved online applications, resources, and
tools necessary for teaching, learning, communications,
and operations.
Key Activity 5.5.6 Improve cybersecurity posture.

Recommendation
The recommendation is to approve this purchase in its entirety.

Contact
Richard Perkins, Director of Information Services and Network Security, richard.perkins@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The purchase amount for Endpoint Protection is $110,869.82 for three years. ($36,956.61 per year).
The purchase amount for Network Protection is $422,768.18 for three years ($140,922.72 per year).

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 29 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
 
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 2_19_24.pdf

Page 30 of 314

DRAFT



Page 31 of 314

DRAFT



Page 32 of 314

DRAFT



Page 33 of 314

DRAFT



Page 34 of 314

DRAFT



Page 35 of 314

DRAFT



Page 36 of 314

DRAFT



Page 37 of 314

DRAFT



Page 38 of 314

DRAFT



Page 39 of 314

DRAFT



Page 40 of 314

DRAFT



Page 41 of 314

DRAFT



Page 42 of 314

DRAFT



Page 43 of 314

DRAFT



Page 44 of 314

DRAFT



Page 45 of 314

DRAFT



Page 46 of 314

DRAFT



Page 47 of 314

DRAFT



Page 48 of 314

DRAFT



Page 49 of 314

DRAFT



Page 50 of 314

DRAFT



Page 51 of 314

DRAFT



Page 52 of 314

DRAFT



Page 53 of 314

DRAFT



Page 54 of 314

DRAFT



Page 55 of 314

DRAFT



Page 56 of 314

DRAFT



Page 57 of 314

DRAFT



Page 58 of 314

DRAFT



Page 59 of 314

DRAFT



Page 60 of 314

DRAFT



Page 61 of 314

DRAFT



Page 62 of 314

DRAFT



Page 63 of 314

DRAFT



Page 64 of 314

DRAFT



Page 65 of 314

DRAFT



Page 66 of 314

DRAFT



Page 67 of 314

DRAFT



Page 68 of 314

DRAFT



Page 69 of 314

DRAFT



Page 70 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Appointment of Clay County School Board's CCEA and CESPA Bargaining Team Members for 2024-2025

Description
Bargaining Team members are approved by the School Board prior to collective bargaining each year.  Superintendent
Broskie and Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Dr. Susan Legutko, are members on both teams.  Please see
attachment.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Bargaining teams have been approved by the school board in past years.

Expected Outcomes
The School Board of Clay County will approve the appointment of bargaining teams which will successfully negotiate the 2024-
2025 contracts between the School Board of Clay County along with the CCEA and CESPA bargaining units.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve the bargaining team members for 2024-2025.

Contact
Brenda Troutman, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2024-2025 District Bargaining Teams.pdf

Page 71 of 314

DRAFT



 

 

 

2024-2025 District Bargaining Team Members 
 

 
CCEA Team: 
Brenda Troutman (Chief Negotiator) 
Jeffrey Schriver 
Tyler Wood 
Martin Aftuck 
John Mescall 
David Broskie 
Susan Legutko 
 
 
CESPA Team:  
Brenda Troutman (Chief Negotiator) 
Sarah Lawson 
Carolyn Hayward 
Randall Crawford 
John Mescall 
David Broskie 
Susan Legutko 
 
 
 
 
 

Leonard Dietzen will serve as special counsel for negotiations. 

Page 72 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Elementary Student Out of State Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Lake Asbury
Elem.

March 21,
2024

Valdosta, GA 6th grade

Students will observe and gather empirical evidence
of characteristics of organisms.  Students will
explore the law of conservation of energy by
differentiating between potential and kinetic energy. 
Identifying situations where kinetic energy is
transformed into potential and vice versa.

Orange Park
Elem. 

April 3,
2024

Valdosta, GA 6th grade

Students will analyze and describe how and why
organisms are classified according to shared
characteristics with emphasis on the Linnaean
system combined with the concept of domains. 
Students will explore the law of conservation of
energy by differentiating between potential and
kinetic energy.  

Discovery Oaks
Elem. 

April 4,
2024

Valdosta, GA 6th grade

Students will explore the law of conservation of
energy by differentiating between potential and
kinetic energy.  Identifying situations where kinetic
energy is transformed into potential and vice versa.

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Page 73 of 314

DRAFT



Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Heather Teto, Chief of Elementary Education, heather.teto@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6906.

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

LAE FIELD TRIP OUT OF STATE.pdf

OPE FIELD TRIP OUT OF STATE.pdf

DOE FIELD TRIP OUT OF STATE.pdf

Page 74 of 314

DRAFT



Page 75 of 314

DRAFT



Page 76 of 314

DRAFT



Page 77 of 314

DRAFT



Page 78 of 314

DRAFT



Page 79 of 314

DRAFT



Page 80 of 314

DRAFT



Page 81 of 314

DRAFT



Page 82 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 83 of 314

DRAFT



Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                                                                         Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Professional
Learning Science

4/2 - 4/5/24 Lakeland, FL

Regional
Science &
Engineerin
g fair
nominees

Science Fair competition

Professional
Learning Science

5/12 -
5/17/24

Los Angeles,
CA

Internation
al Science
Fair
Nominees

Science Fair competition

Clay High School 2/2 - 2/3/24
Powder
Springs, GA

NJROTC Qualified for NJROTC Competition

Fleming Island
High School

3/13 -
3/17/24

Tampa, FL
Thespian
Troupe/Dra
ma

District competition

Fleming Island
High School

3/1 - 3/2/24
Winter
Haven, FL

Robotics
Team

Qualified for State Competition

Fleming Island
High School

3/1 - 3/2/24 Douglas, GA
NJROTC
Drill Team

Drill Competition

Fleming Island
High School

3/15 -
3/18/24

Orlando, FL FBLA FBLA Conference

Fleming Island
High School

3/22 -
3/23/24

Tallahassee,
FL

Track &
Field Team

Pre-state track meet

Fleming Island
High School

3/22 -
3/23/24

St.
Petersburg,
FL

Ocean
Science
Bowl Team

Marine Science competition

Middleburg High
School

3/11 -
3/12/24

Orlando, FL
Floriculture
Team

Qualified for competition

Middleburg High
School

4/23 -
4/25/24 &
4/29 -
5/3/24

Various
locations see
attached
schedule

Boys &
Girls
Tennis

Tennis Matches

Middleburg High
School

4/29 -
5/3/24

Various
locations see
attached
schedule

Varsity
Baseball

Tournaments and possible State Playoffs

Middleburg High
School

2/16 -
2/17/24

Tampa, FL
Girls
Weightliftin
g

State competition if qualified

Middleburg High
School

3/29 -
4/3/24

Orlando, FL
Prostart
Culinary
Students

Culinary Competition

Oakleaf High
School

3/13 -
3/16/24

Tampa, FL
Theatre
Club

State Festival Performance

Oakleaf High 3/15 - Miami, FL Model UN Model UN Conference

Page 84 of 314

DRAFT



School 3/17/24
Orange Park
High School

4/4 - 4/8/24 Anaheim, CA Band Heritage Festival performance

Orange Park
High School

3/1 - 3/2/24 Douglas, GA NJROTC Drill Competition

Orange Park
High School

4/3 - 4/5/24
Parris Island,
SC

NJROTC Boot Camp visit for cadets

Ridgeview High
School

3/1 - 3/2/24 Coffee, GA
NJROTC
Drill Team

Drill Competition

Ridgeview High
School

3/14 -
3/18/24

Kings
Mountain
State Park,
NC

NJROTC
Orienteerin
g Team

Qualified for National Orienteering Competition

Ridgeview High
School

3/1- 3/2/24 Tifiton, GA Baseball Baseball Tournament

         

 

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

March 2024 Student Travel.pdf

Page 85 of 314

DRAFT



Page 86 of 314

DRAFT



Page 87 of 314

DRAFT



Page 88 of 314

DRAFT



Page 89 of 314

DRAFT



Page 90 of 314

DRAFT



Page 91 of 314

DRAFT



Page 92 of 314

DRAFT



Page 93 of 314

DRAFT



Page 94 of 314

DRAFT



Page 95 of 314

DRAFT



Page 96 of 314

DRAFT



Page 97 of 314

DRAFT



Page 98 of 314

DRAFT



Page 99 of 314

DRAFT



Page 100 of 314

DRAFT



Page 101 of 314

DRAFT



Page 102 of 314

DRAFT



Page 103 of 314

DRAFT



Page 104 of 314

DRAFT



Page 105 of 314

DRAFT



Page 106 of 314

DRAFT



Page 107 of 314

DRAFT



Page 108 of 314

DRAFT



Page 109 of 314

DRAFT



Page 110 of 314

DRAFT



Page 111 of 314

DRAFT



Page 112 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Proposed AMIkids-Clay County Employee and Student Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year

Description
AMIkids-Clay County developed an employee and student calendar for the 2024-2025 school year. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
None

Expected Outcomes
All student/employee calendars require School Board approval to establish school/work schedules for students and employees.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board will approve the recommended AMIkids-Clay County Employee and Student Calendar for
the 2024-2025 school year.

Contact
Treasure Pickett, Director K12 Secondary Ed., treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

AMIkids-Clay County 2024-2025 School Calendar.pdf

Page 113 of 314

DRAFT



Page 114 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Proposed PACE Employee and Student Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year

Description
 
All student/employee calendars require School Board approval to establish school/work schedules for students and employees. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Prior years' Proposed PACE calendars were Board approved and posted on the district website. 

Expected Outcomes
All student calendars require School Board approval to establish school schedules for students and employees. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
 
That the Clay County School Board will approve the recommended PACE Employee and Student Calendar for the 2024-2025
school year.

Contact
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed,  treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Pace Clay 2024-2025 Academic Calendar.pdf

Page 115 of 314

DRAFT



UPDATED: 2/9/24 

Pace Center for Girls – Clay 
Following Clay County Academic Calendar 2024-2025SY 
  
 

July 2024 
S M T W T F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30 31    
15 school days; 1 holiday; 4 school 
closed days; 3 In-service days 

 
 

 August 2024 
S M T W T F S 
    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
14 school days; 8 in-service days;  

1 early dismissal 
 

 

 September 2024 
S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30      

20 school days; 1 holiday 
 

 

     
October 2024 

S M T W T F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30 31   

22 school days; 1 in-service days 
1 early dismissal  

 
 

 November 2024 
S M T W T F S 
     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

15 school days; 3 holidays 
3 school closed days 

 
 

 December 2024 
S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30 31     

15 school days, 2 holidays 
5 school closed days; 

1 early dismissal 
 

 

     
January 2025 

S M T W T F S 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30 31  

19 school days; 1 holiday 
1 in-service day; 1 make up day; 

2 school closed days 
 

 

 February 2025 
S M T W T F S 
       1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28  
19 school days; 1 school closed day 
1 early dismissal; 1 in-service day 

 
 

 March 2025 
S M T W T F S 
      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30 31      

16 school days; 5 wellness 
days/Spring Break 

 
 

     
April 2025 

S M T W T F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30    

20 school days; 
2 school closed days 

 
 

 May 2025 
S M T W T F S 
    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

17 school days; 4 in-service days 
1 early dismissal; 1 holiday 

 
 

 June 2025 
S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30      

16 school days; 1 in-service day 
4 school closed days 

1 early release 
 

 

 
  

Page 116 of 314

DRAFT



UPDATED: 2/9/24 

Key: 
 
DJJ requirement = 230 academic days with 300 minimum minutes per day, or equivalent (69,000 minutes per year) 
DJJ requirement = 20 Professional Development Days 

 
Academic Minutes= 75,020 
Early Dismissal 6 
Wellness Week/Center Closed/Spring Break 5 
FTE Week/School Days 17 
School District PD Days 19 
Holiday/Center Closed 9 
Additional County’s No School Days 21 
 
 
Sat/Sun In-service Days: 
Teach Conference 2/8 
 
Holidays/Center Closed – 16 
Independence Day 7/4 
Labor Day 9/2 
Veteran’s Day 11/11 
Thanksgiving Day 11/28 
Day after Thanksgiving 11/29 
Christmas Eve 12/24 
Christmas Day 12/25 
New Year’s Day 1/01 
MLK Day 1/20 
President’s Day 2/17  
Good Friday 4/18 
Memorial Day 5/26 
Juneteenth 6/19 
 
 

Page 117 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - School Improvement Plan Approval

Description
According to State Rule 6A-1.099811, School Improvement Plans are fluid plans developed by school leadership and approved
by the SAC and district to guide school improvement planning, problem solving and implementation processes by coordinating
strategies and resources that will lead to increased student achievement.
 
Every school writes a School Improvement Plan each year. Each plan is developed collaboratively with various stakeholders
including teachers, support staff, administration, parents, and community members.  Teams reflect on previous school data and
develop goals to address specific grade levels, subject areas, and/or subgroups.  The plan outlines action steps, evidence-based
strategies, and timeline for implementation.

Gap Analysis
These plans are necessary for school improvement efforts.

Previous Outcomes
School improvement plans, while only required to be approved by the district, have previously been reviewed and approved by
the School Board.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of School Improvement Plans for St. Johns Classical Academy Fleming Island and St. Johns Classical Academy
Orange Park for the 2023–2024 school year.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Student Success
Provide evidence-based academic opportunities with differentiated support for all students.
Goal 4: Safe and Positive Learning Environment
Cultivate and sustain resilience, respect, and positive behavior through the training and implementation of student-centered,
evidence-based practices.

Recommendation
That the School Board approve the additional School Improvement Plans for the 2023-2024 school year.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

SJCFI.pdf

SJCOP.pdf

Page 118 of 314

DRAFT



Clay County Schools

St Johns Classical Academy
School

2023-24
Schoolwide Improvement Plan (SIP)

Page 119 of 314

DRAFT



Table of Contents

3SIP Authority and Purpose

6I. School Information

10II. Needs Assessment/Data Review

15III. Planning for Improvement

0IV. ATSI, TSI and CSI Resource Review

0V. Reading Achievement Initiative for Scholastic Excellence

0VI. Title I Requirements

0VII. Budget to Support Areas of Focus

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 2 of 18

Page 120 of 314

DRAFT



St Johns Classical Academy
114 CANOVA RD, Fleming Island, FL 32003

www.stjca.org

SIP Authority

Section 1001.42(18), Florida Statutes (F.S.), requires district school boards to annually approve and require
implementation of a new, amended, or continuation SIP for each school in the district which has a school grade
of D or F; has a significant gap in achievement on statewide, standardized assessments administered pursuant
to s. 1008.22 by one or more student subgroups, as defined in the federal Elementary and Secondary
Education Act (ESEA), 20 U.S.C. s. 6311(b)(2)(C)(v)(II); has not significantly increased the percentage of
students passing statewide, standardized assessments; has not significantly increased the percentage of
students demonstrating Learning Gains, as defined in s. 1008.34, and as calculated under s. 1008.34(3)(b),
who passed statewide, standardized assessments; has been identified as requiring instructional supports
under the Reading Achievement Initiative for Scholastic Excellence (RAISE) program established in s.
1008.365; or has significantly lower graduation rates for a subgroup when compared to the state’s graduation
rate. Rule 6A-1.098813, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), requires district school boards to approve a SIP
for each Department of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) school in the district rated as Unsatisfactory.

Below are the criteria for identification of traditional public and public charter schools pursuant to the Every
Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) State plan:

Additional Target Support and Improvement (ATSI)

A school not identified for CSI or TSI, but has one or more subgroups with a Federal Index below 41%.

Targeted Support and Improvement (TSI)

A school not identified as CSI that has at least one consistently underperforming subgroup with a Federal
Index below 32% for three consecutive years.

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI)

A school can be identified as CSI in any of the following four ways:

1. Have an overall Federal Index below 41%;
2. Have a graduation rate at or below 67%;
3. Have a school grade of D or F; or
4. Have a Federal Index below 41% in the same subgroup(s) for 6 consecutive years.

ESEA sections 1111(d) requires that each school identified for ATSI, TSI or CSI develop a support and
improvement plan created in partnership with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders,
teachers and parent), is informed by all indicators in the State’s accountability system, includes evidence-
based interventions, is based on a school-level needs assessment, and identifies resource inequities to be
addressed through implementation of the plan. The support and improvement plans for schools identified as
TSI, ATSI and non-Title I CSI must be approved and monitored by the school district. The support and
improvement plans for schools identified as Title I, CSI must be approved by the school district and

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 3 of 18

Page 121 of 314

DRAFT



Department. The Department must monitor and periodically review implementation of each CSI plan after
approval.

The Department's SIP template in the Florida Continuous Improvement Management System (CIMS),
https://www.floridacims.org, meets all state and rule requirements for traditional public schools and
incorporates all ESSA components for a support and improvement plan required for traditional public and
public charter schools identified as CSI, TSI and ATSI, and eligible schools applying for Unified School
Improvement Grant (UniSIG) funds.

Districts may allow schools that do not fit the aforementioned conditions to develop a SIP using the template in
CIMS.

The responses to the corresponding sections in the Department’s SIP template may address the requirements
for: 1) Title I schools operating a schoolwide program (SWD), pursuant to ESSA, as amended, Section
1114(b); and 2) charter schools that receive a school grade of D or F or three consecutive grades below C,
pursuant to Rule 6A-1.099827, F.A.C. The chart below lists the applicable requirements.

SIP Sections Title I Schoolwide Program Charter Schools

I-A: School Mission/Vision 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(1)

I-B-C: School Leadership, Stakeholder Involvement
& SIP Monitoring ESSA 1114(b)(2-3)

I-E: Early Warning System ESSA 1114(b)(7)(A)(iii)(III) 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(2)

II-A-C: Data Review 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(2)

II-F: Progress Monitoring ESSA 1114(b)(3)

III-A: Data Analysis/Reflection ESSA 1114(b)(6) 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(4)

III-B: Area(s) of Focus ESSA 1114(b)(7)(A)(i-iii)

III-C: Other SI Priorities 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(5-9)

VI: Title I Requirements
ESSA 1114(b)(2, 4-5),
(7)(A)(iii)(I-V)-(B)
ESSA 1116(b-g)

Note: Charter schools that are also Title I must comply with the requirements in both columns.

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 4 of 18

Page 122 of 314

DRAFT



Purpose and Outline of the SIP

The SIP is intended to be the primary artifact used by every school with stakeholders to review data, set goals,
create an action plan and monitor progress. The Department encourages schools to use the SIP as a “living
document” by continually updating, refining and using the plan to guide their work throughout the year. This
printed version represents the SIP as of the "Date Modified" listed in the footer.

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 5 of 18

Page 123 of 314

DRAFT



I. School Information

School Mission and Vision

Provide the school's mission statement.

The mission of St. Johns Classical Academy is to develop graduates in mind and character through a
classical, content-rich curriculum that emphasizes the principles of virtuous living, traditional learning,
and civic responsibility. We are building intelligent, virtuous American citizens.

Provide the school's vision statement.

The vision of St. Johns Classical Academy is to offer a unique option that provides students with
classical education. Scholars will receive a cohesive Classical education, which builds upon itself year
after year, creating a successful foundation for learning. Scholars will be intentionally taught the benefits
of a virtuous character and will be challenged through the lessons taught within the curriculum to develop
and strengthen their character. Our teachers will provide the support and attention scholars require in
order to meet the high expectations of a Classical education.

School Leadership Team, Stakeholder Involvement and SIP Monitoring

School Leadership Team
For each member of the school leadership team, select the employee name and email address from the
dropdown. Identify the position title and job duties/responsibilities as it relates to SIP implementation for
each member of the school leadership team.:

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 6 of 18

Page 124 of 314

DRAFT



Name Position
Title Job Duties and Responsibilities

Johnson,
Daniel Principal

The School Headmaster is tasked with overall school management to fulfill the
mission, providing organizational and instructional leadership to assure positive
scholar outcomes while maintaining the integrity of the approved charter and the
safety of the school population.
-Ensures compliance with established procedures and rules in daily operation of
school, maintaining standards of conduct set forth by the school, the county, and
the state.
-Responsible for faculty/staff interviews, hiring, contracts, and evaluation.
-Ensures commitment to school's mission and implements the school
improvement plan.
-Provides leadership in developing and fostering positive community relationships
and effective communication with all stakeholders, including students, faculty/
staff, the governing Board, the Lions Council, and parents/guardians.
-Ensures security, cleanliness, and maintenance of facilities and coordinates their
utilization.
-Coordinates the supervision of duty assignments and extra-curricular activities.
-Responsible for timely reporting of school data and effective operation of the
school, assisting in business management, budget development, and cost
accounting
-Provides effective leadership in implementing ethics and conduct in Teacher
Procedural Manual and in assisting in professional development planning and
delivery.
-Ensures safety of school population by coordinating development and
implementation of emergency plans and drills.
-Ensures implementation of policies and programs for school technology, special
needs populations,
-Ensures proper purchasing and accounting/inventory of all school property.
-Provides leadership in implementation of state standards and best practices that
lead to student success.

Casteel,
Angie

Assistant
Principal

The Principal of Upper School manages all aspects of student behavior/
attendance and teacher coaching/training in grades 6-12 in order to uphold the
school's mission and ensure fidelity to the Hillsdale curriculum.

Heaton,
Lyna

Assistant
Principal

The Principal of Grammar School manages all aspects of student behavior/
attendance and teacher coaching/training in grades K-5 in order to uphold the
school's mission and ensure fidelity to the Hillsdale curriculum.

Stakeholder Involvement and SIP Development
Describe the process for involving stakeholders (including the school leadership team, teachers and
school staff, parents, students (mandatory for secondary schools) and families, and business or
community leaders) and how their input was used in the SIP development process. (ESSA 1114(b)(2))

Note: If a School Advisory Council is used to fulfill these requirements, it must include all required
stakeholders.

Stakeholder involvement is very important to the success of St. Johns Classical Academy. In its seventh
year of operations, the school continues to receive better involvement from all stakeholders. The school

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 7 of 18

Page 125 of 314

DRAFT



leadership team, comprised of school administrators, grammar school team leads, and upper school
department chairs meets regularly to discuss near-term and long-term school improvement issues. On a
regular basis, teachers, school staff, and parents participate in surveys with the purpose of school
improvement. Lions Council, the school’s parent-teacher association, helps determine the top issues of
parents using data from the survey. Then, a townhall meeting is held where the school headmaster
briefs the results of the survey along with the top issues, followed by a questions and answer segment.
School administrators meet with Student Government to discuss student issues; there is also a comment
box in the cafeteria. Lions Council oversees the community partners program and helps gather input.

SIP Monitoring
Describe how the SIP will be regularly monitored for effective implementation and impact on increasing
the achievement of students in meeting the State’s academic standards, particularly for those students
with the greatest achievement gap. Describe how the school will revise the plan, as necessary, to ensure
continuous improvement. (ESSA 1114(b)(3))

The school improvement plan will be monitored through quarterly analysis of measurable goals in the
areas of focus and monthly administrator classroom walkthroughs to ensure fidelity to the chosen
interventions. We will continue analyzing and observing to target the highest priorities for increasing
student achievement.

Demographic Data
2023-24 Status
(per MSID File) Active

School Type and Grades Served
(per MSID File)

Combination School
PK-12

Primary Service Type
(per MSID File) K-12 General Education

2022-23 Title I School Status No
2022-23 Minority Rate 24%

2022-23 Economically Disadvantaged (FRL) Rate 3%
Charter School Yes
RAISE School No

2021-22 ESSA Identification N/A
Eligible for Unified School Improvement Grant (UniSIG) No

2021-22 ESSA Subgroups Represented
(subgroups with 10 or more students)

(subgroups below the federal threshold are identified with an asterisk)

Students With Disabilities (SWD)
Asian Students (ASN)
Hispanic Students (HSP)
Multiracial Students (MUL)
White Students (WHT)

School Grades History

2021-22: A

2019-20: A

2018-19: A

2017-18: C

School Improvement Rating History
DJJ Accountability Rating History

Early Warning Systems

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 8 of 18

Page 126 of 314

DRAFT



Using 2022-23 data, complete the table below with the number of students by current grade
level that exhibit each early warning indicator listed:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Absent 10% or more days 13 3 6 4 5 8 6 4 7 56
One or more suspensions 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 1 4 9
Course failure in English Language Arts (ELA) 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 4
Course failure in Math 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Level 1 on statewide ELA assessment 0 0 0 24 15 10 7 23 18 97
Level 1 on statewide Math assessment 0 0 0 18 25 15 4 6 3 71
Number of students with a substantial reading deficiency as
defined by Rule 6A-6.0531, F.A.C. 0 0 0 24 15 10 7 23 18 97

Using the table above, complete the table below with the number of students by current grade
level that have two or more early warning indicators:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Students with two or more indicators 3 0 0 5 4 4 0 3 2 21

Using the table above, complete the table below with the number of students identified
retained:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Retained Students: Current Year 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4
Students retained two or more times 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Prior Year (2022-23) As Initially Reported (pre-populated)

The number of students by grade level that exhibited each early warning indicator:

Grade
LevelIndicator Total

Absent 10% or more school days
One or more suspensions
Course failure in English Language Arts (ELA)
Course failure in Math
Level 1 on statewide FSA ELA assessment
Level 1 on statewide FSA Math assessment
Number of students with a substantial reading deficiency as defined by Rule
6A-6.0531, F.A.C.

The number of students by current grade level that had two or more early warning indicators:

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 9 of 18

Page 127 of 314

DRAFT



Grade LevelIndicator Total
Students with two or more indicators

The number of students identified retained:

Grade LevelIndicator Total
Retained Students: Current Year
Students retained two or more times

Prior Year (2022-23) Updated (pre-populated)
Section 3 includes data tables that are pre-populated based off information submitted in prior year's SIP.

The number of students by grade level that exhibited each early warning indicator:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Absent 10% or more school days 13 3 6 4 5 8 6 4 7 56
One or more suspensions 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 1 4 9
Course failure in English Language Arts (ELA) 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 4
Course failure in Math 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Level 1 on statewide FSA ELA assessment 0 0 0 24 15 10 7 23 18 97
Level 1 on statewide FSA Math assessment 0 0 0 18 25 15 4 6 3 71
Number of students with a substantial reading deficiency as
defined by Rule 6A-6.0531, F.A.C. 0 0 0 24 15 10 7 23 18 97

The number of students by current grade level that had two or more early warning indicators:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Students with two or more indicators 3 0 0 5 4 4 0 3 2 21

The number of students identified retained:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Retained Students: Current Year 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
Students retained two or more times 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

II. Needs Assessment/Data Review

ESSA School, District and State Comparison (pre-populated)
Please note that the district and state averages shown here represent the averages for similar school types
(elementary, middle, high school or combination schools). Each "blank" cell indicates the school had less
than 10 eligible students with data for a particular component and was not calculated for the school.

On April 9, 2021, FDOE Emergency Order No. 2021-EO-02 made 2020-21 school grades optional.
They have been removed from this publication.

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 10 of 18

Page 128 of 314

DRAFT



2022 2019
Accountability Component

School District State School District State

ELA Achievement* 72 56 57 67 57 61

ELA Learning Gains 59 49 55 54 53 59

ELA Lowest 25th Percentile 51 37 46 44 53 54

Math Achievement* 71 57 55 60 52 62

Math Learning Gains 61 51 60 55 49 59

Math Lowest 25th Percentile 56 44 56 52 46 52

Science Achievement* 65 57 51 61 54 56

Social Studies Achievement* 96 71 72 98 77 78

Middle School Acceleration 63 82

Graduation Rate

College and Career Acceleration

ELP Progress

* In cases where a school does not test 95% of students in a subject, the achievement component will be
different in the Federal Percent of Points Index (FPPI) than in school grades calculation.

See Florida School Grades, School Improvement Ratings and DJJ Accountability Ratings.

ESSA School-Level Data Review (pre-populated)

2021-22 ESSA Federal Index

ESSA Category (CSI, TSI or ATSI) N/A

OVERALL Federal Index – All Students 66

OVERALL Federal Index Below 41% - All Students No

Total Number of Subgroups Missing the Target 0

Total Points Earned for the Federal Index 594

Total Components for the Federal Index 9

Percent Tested 100

Graduation Rate

ESSA Subgroup Data Review (pre-populated)

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 11 of 18

Page 129 of 314

DRAFT



2021-22 ESSA SUBGROUP DATA SUMMARY

ESSA
Subgroup

Federal
Percent of

Points Index

Subgroup
Below
41%

Number of Consecutive
years the Subgroup is Below

41%

Number of Consecutive
Years the Subgroup is

Below 32%

SWD 54

ELL

AMI

ASN 75

BLK

HSP 67

MUL 72

PAC

WHT 66

FRL

Accountability Components by Subgroup
Each “blank” cell indicates the school had less than 10 eligible students with data for a particular component
and was not calculated for the school. (pre-populated)

2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY COMPONENTS BY SUBGROUPS

Subgroups ELA
Ach. ELA LG ELA LG

L25%
Math
Ach.

Math
LG

Math
LG

L25%

Sci
Ach. SS Ach. MS

Accel.

Grad
Rate

2020-21

C & C
Accel

2020-21

ELP
Progress

All
Students 72 59 51 71 61 56 65 96 63

SWD 53 60 54 44 56 60 50

ELL

AMI

ASN 70 80

BLK

HSP 72 66 50 69 65 52 72 92

MUL 67 79 80 62

PAC

WHT 72 57 54 71 59 59 64 97 59

FRL

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 12 of 18

Page 130 of 314

DRAFT



2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY COMPONENTS BY SUBGROUPS

Subgroups ELA
Ach. ELA LG ELA LG

L25%
Math
Ach.

Math
LG

Math
LG

L25%

Sci
Ach. SS Ach. MS

Accel.

Grad
Rate

2019-20

C & C
Accel

2019-20

ELP
Progress

All
Students 68 51 38 66 59 59 64 96 68

SWD 41 28 14 48 54 53 56

ELL

AMI

ASN 80

BLK 46 54

HSP 74 53 43 65 46 43 68

MUL 71 69

PAC

WHT 67 50 35 66 65 66 64 94 70

FRL 60 36 53 9

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY COMPONENTS BY SUBGROUPS

Subgroups ELA
Ach. ELA LG ELA LG

L25%
Math
Ach.

Math
LG

Math
LG

L25%

Sci
Ach. SS Ach. MS

Accel.

Grad
Rate

2017-18

C & C
Accel

2017-18

ELP
Progress

All
Students 67 54 44 60 55 52 61 98 82

SWD 36 39 40 40 50 53 23

ELL

AMI

ASN

BLK 57 42 57 50

HSP 64 63 58 60 58 53 59

MUL

PAC

WHT 67 53 41 60 55 51 62 98 80

FRL 56 48 45 49 39 24 55 100 80

Grade Level Data Review– State Assessments (pre-populated)
The data are raw data and include ALL students who tested at the school. This is not school grade data.
The percentages shown here represent ALL students who received a score of 3 or higher on the statewide
assessments.

An asterisk (*) in any cell indicates the data has been suppressed due to fewer than 10 students tested, or
all tested students scoring the same.

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 13 of 18

Page 131 of 314

DRAFT



ELA

Grade Year School District
School-
District

Comparison
State

School-
State

Comparison

10 2023 - Spring 64% 57% 7% 50% 14%

05 2023 - Spring 66% 55% 11% 54% 12%

07 2023 - Spring 54% 52% 2% 47% 7%

08 2023 - Spring 58% 51% 7% 47% 11%

09 2023 - Spring 67% 55% 12% 48% 19%

04 2023 - Spring 69% 61% 8% 58% 11%

06 2023 - Spring 64% 61% 3% 47% 17%

03 2023 - Spring 64% 59% 5% 50% 14%

MATH

Grade Year School District
School-
District

Comparison
State

School-
State

Comparison

06 2023 - Spring 76% 75% 1% 54% 22%

07 2023 - Spring 75% 50% 25% 48% 27%

03 2023 - Spring 74% 62% 12% 59% 15%

04 2023 - Spring 72% 67% 5% 61% 11%

08 2023 - Spring 70% 70% 0% 55% 15%

05 2023 - Spring 79% 59% 20% 55% 24%

SCIENCE

Grade Year School District
School-
District

Comparison
State

School-
State

Comparison

08 2023 - Spring 51% 59% -8% 44% 7%

05 2023 - Spring 72% 63% 9% 51% 21%

ALGEBRA

Grade Year School District
School-
District

Comparison
State

School-
State

Comparison

N/A 2023 - Spring 81% 68% 13% 50% 31%

GEOMETRY

Grade Year School District
School-
District

Comparison
State

School-
State

Comparison

N/A 2023 - Spring 82% 53% 29% 48% 34%

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 14 of 18

Page 132 of 314

DRAFT



BIOLOGY

Grade Year School District
School-
District

Comparison
State

School-
State

Comparison

N/A 2023 - Spring 82% 73% 9% 63% 19%

CIVICS

Grade Year School District
School-
District

Comparison
State

School-
State

Comparison

N/A 2023 - Spring 85% 79% 6% 66% 19%

HISTORY

Grade Year School District
School-
District

Comparison
State

School-
State

Comparison

N/A 2023 - Spring 86% 77% 9% 63% 23%

III. Planning for Improvement

Data Analysis/Reflection
Answer the following reflection prompts after examining any/all relevant school data sources.

Which data component showed the lowest performance? Explain the contributing factor(s) to last
year's low performance and discuss any trends.

8th-grade science showed the lowest performance, and 7th/8th ELA scores are significantly lower than
ELA scores in the rest of the school. Lower reading ability is likely contributing to lower science scores.
In addition, for that class, we hired a new teacher mid-year in both their 7th and 8th grade years, and
both of those teachers were new-to-teaching and working towards certification. We were also performing
less walkthroughs and therefore not able to provide necessary feedback to these teachers.

Which data component showed the greatest decline from the prior year? Explain the factor(s)
that contributed to this decline.

Over three years, the percentage of eligible middle schoolers who passed a high school level EOC
decreased from 80 (2019) to 68 (2020) to 63 (2021). One contributing factor is the instructional
component. When the school opened 2017-2018, the math lacked pre-algebra instruction which created
gaps in the years that followed. In addition, as we were initially increasing enrollment in grades 6-8, we
were not suitably mindful about proper student placement in the algebra class.

Which data component had the greatest gap when compared to the state average? Explain the
factor(s) that contributed to this gap and any trends.

Our greatest gaps came in geometry and algebra: our geometry scores are 34 percentage points higher
than the state, and our algebra scores are 31 percentage points higher. One factor that contributes to
this is instruction; instructors for these classes are seasoned teachers, and we have provided training in
instructing through Socratic questioning techniques that force students to explain their processes for
solving math problems. Also, we provided students with access to testing practice resources, such as

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 15 of 18

Page 133 of 314

DRAFT



IXL, and we required 10 minutes per night of practice. Another is afterschool tutorial time; our math
teachers provide more tutorial time slots than other teachers. An additional factor is our peer tutorial
program, which math teachers, especially algebra, utilize more than other departments. Peer tutors are
recommended by teachers, trained by the program leader, and then paired with scholars who need
weekly, one-to-one tutoring.

Which data component showed the most improvement? What new actions did your school take
in this area?

After comparing testing data from the 21-22 to the 22-23 school year, math in grade levels 3rd-8th is one
of the data components that showed the most improvement. Each grade level increased except for 8th
grade. When comparing 8th grade to the district, there was a 0% difference and a positive 15%
compared to the state. Another area of most improvement was 5th grade science. There was a 14%
increase.
Our school took new actions in math and science, such as providing resources and professional
development. Teacher turnover was very low, and the teachers were able to build upon their foundation.
Comparing our curriculum to the state standards helped the teachers know where the gaps were. The
teachers were given iXL, a computer program, for the students to close those gaps. It also allowed the
students to be exposed to questions that they may encounter on the state test.

Reflecting on the EWS data from Part I, identify one or two potential areas of concern.

The two potential areas of concern are the level 1 scores in ELA and math from 3rd to 8th grade.

Rank your highest priorities (maximum of 5) for school improvement in the upcoming school
year.

1. Improve reading readiness among grades 3-8
2. Decrease number of level one scores in math grades 3-5
3. Increase science scores in grade 8

Area of Focus
(Identified key Area of Focus that addresses the school’s highest priority based on any/all relevant data
sources)

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 16 of 18

Page 134 of 314

DRAFT



#1. Instructional Practice specifically relating to ELA
Area of Focus Description and Rationale:
Include a rationale that explains how it was identified as a crucial need from the data reviewed.
One Area of Focus must be positive culture and environment. If identified for ATSI or TSI, each identified
low-performing subgroup must be addressed.
We have based this area of focus on state assessment data.
Measurable Outcome:
State the specific measurable outcome the school plans to achieve. This should be a data based,
objective outcome.
Our measurable outcome a 2-3 percentage point increase in ELA scores at each grade level, grades 3-8.
Monitoring:
Describe how this Area of Focus will be monitored for the desired outcome.
We will monitor by monitoring PM testing data throughout the year, administrator classroom walkthroughs,
and bi-monthly, grade-level data analysis meetings.
Person responsible for monitoring outcome:
Kayla Flannagan (kayla.flannagan@myoneclay.net)
Evidence-based Intervention:
Describe the evidence-based intervention being implemented for this Area of Focus (Schools identified for
ATSI, TSI or CSI must include one or more evidence-based interventions.)
We will implement researched-based literacy instruction utilizing the Literacy Essentials curriculum.
Rationale for Evidence-based Intervention:
Explain the rationale for selecting this specific strategy.
Literacy Essentials is a comprehensive, evidence-based reading program that how teaches students to
break the code of the language through direct instruction of the phonograms, also known as spelling
patterns and rules of the English language. As a part of the LE program, McCall Crabbs testing provides
data used to evaluate and monitor student growth in reading fluency and comprehension.
Tier of Evidence-based Intervention
(Schools that use UniSIG funds for an evidence-based intervention must meet the top three levels of
evidence as defined by ESSA section 8101(21)(A).)
Tier 1 - Strong Evidence
Will this evidence-based intervention be funded with UniSIG?
No
Action Steps to Implement
List the action steps that will be taken as part of this strategy to address the Area of Focus. Identify the
person responsible for monitoring each step.
Administrative classroom walkthroughs for each teacher to ensure fidelity to the curriculum with immediate
feedback.
Person Responsible: Lyna Heaton (lyna.heaton@myoneclay.net)
By When: by the end of each month
Data is pulled, analyzed, and then presented to the administration.
Person Responsible: Kayla Flannagan (kayla.flannagan@myoneclay.net)
By When: At the end of each testing period
Administration meets with each grade level to analyze and create an action plan for needed students.
Person Responsible: Lyna Heaton (lyna.heaton@myoneclay.net)

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 17 of 18

Page 135 of 314

DRAFT



By When: The end of the first quarter and continued bi-monthly

#2. Instructional Practice specifically relating to Math
Area of Focus Description and Rationale:
Include a rationale that explains how it was identified as a crucial need from the data reviewed.
One Area of Focus must be positive culture and environment. If identified for ATSI or TSI, each identified
low-performing subgroup must be addressed.
We have based this area of focus on state testing data in grades 3-5, teacher input, and classroom
walkthroughs/observations.
Measurable Outcome:
State the specific measurable outcome the school plans to achieve. This should be a data based,
objective outcome.
The measurable outcome is a 25% decrease in the number of level one scores from PM1 testing to PM3
testing.
Monitoring:
Describe how this Area of Focus will be monitored for the desired outcome.
We will monitor IXL use, state testing data, classroom data, and effective instructional practices.
Person responsible for monitoring outcome:
Lyna Heaton (lyna.heaton@myoneclay.net)
Evidence-based Intervention:
Describe the evidence-based intervention being implemented for this Area of Focus (Schools identified for
ATSI, TSI or CSI must include one or more evidence-based interventions.)
IXL usage and fidelity to the Singapore Dimensions Math curriculum
Rationale for Evidence-based Intervention:
Explain the rationale for selecting this specific strategy.
Both IXL and the Singapore Dimensions Math curriculum have strong evidence-based data to support
improved outcomes in math.
Tier of Evidence-based Intervention
(Schools that use UniSIG funds for an evidence-based intervention must meet the top three levels of
evidence as defined by ESSA section 8101(21)(A).)
Tier 1 - Strong Evidence
Will this evidence-based intervention be funded with UniSIG?
No
Action Steps to Implement
List the action steps that will be taken as part of this strategy to address the Area of Focus. Identify the
person responsible for monitoring each step.
Require each teacher to identify areas of scholar weakness and implement daily, targeted IXL practice for
10-15 minutes.
Person Responsible: Lyna Heaton (lyna.heaton@myoneclay.net)
By When: End of August
Implement professional development for best practices in teaching Singapore Math and recognizing/
targeting gaps in knowledge.
Person Responsible: Lyna Heaton (lyna.heaton@myoneclay.net)
By When: End of first quarter

Clay - 0667 - St Johns Classical Academy - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/1/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 18 of 18

Page 136 of 314

DRAFT



Clay County Schools

St. Johns Classical Academy
Orange Park School

2023-24
Schoolwide Improvement Plan (SIP)

Page 137 of 314

DRAFT



Table of Contents

3SIP Authority and Purpose

6I. School Information

9II. Needs Assessment/Data Review

13III. Planning for Improvement

0IV. ATSI, TSI and CSI Resource Review

0V. Reading Achievement Initiative for Scholastic Excellence

0VI. Title I Requirements

0VII. Budget to Support Areas of Focus

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 2 of 14

Page 138 of 314

DRAFT



St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park
1324 KINGSLEY AVENUE, Orange Park, FL 32003

www.stjca.org

SIP Authority

Section 1001.42(18), Florida Statutes (F.S.), requires district school boards to annually approve and require
implementation of a new, amended, or continuation SIP for each school in the district which has a school grade
of D or F; has a significant gap in achievement on statewide, standardized assessments administered pursuant
to s. 1008.22 by one or more student subgroups, as defined in the federal Elementary and Secondary
Education Act (ESEA), 20 U.S.C. s. 6311(b)(2)(C)(v)(II); has not significantly increased the percentage of
students passing statewide, standardized assessments; has not significantly increased the percentage of
students demonstrating Learning Gains, as defined in s. 1008.34, and as calculated under s. 1008.34(3)(b),
who passed statewide, standardized assessments; has been identified as requiring instructional supports
under the Reading Achievement Initiative for Scholastic Excellence (RAISE) program established in s.
1008.365; or has significantly lower graduation rates for a subgroup when compared to the state’s graduation
rate. Rule 6A-1.098813, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), requires district school boards to approve a SIP
for each Department of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) school in the district rated as Unsatisfactory.

Below are the criteria for identification of traditional public and public charter schools pursuant to the Every
Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) State plan:

Additional Target Support and Improvement (ATSI)

A school not identified for CSI or TSI, but has one or more subgroups with a Federal Index below 41%.

Targeted Support and Improvement (TSI)

A school not identified as CSI that has at least one consistently underperforming subgroup with a Federal
Index below 32% for three consecutive years.

Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI)

A school can be identified as CSI in any of the following four ways:

1. Have an overall Federal Index below 41%;
2. Have a graduation rate at or below 67%;
3. Have a school grade of D or F; or
4. Have a Federal Index below 41% in the same subgroup(s) for 6 consecutive years.

ESEA sections 1111(d) requires that each school identified for ATSI, TSI or CSI develop a support and
improvement plan created in partnership with stakeholders (including principals and other school leaders,
teachers and parent), is informed by all indicators in the State’s accountability system, includes evidence-
based interventions, is based on a school-level needs assessment, and identifies resource inequities to be
addressed through implementation of the plan. The support and improvement plans for schools identified as
TSI, ATSI and non-Title I CSI must be approved and monitored by the school district. The support and
improvement plans for schools identified as Title I, CSI must be approved by the school district and

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 3 of 14

Page 139 of 314

DRAFT



Department. The Department must monitor and periodically review implementation of each CSI plan after
approval.

The Department's SIP template in the Florida Continuous Improvement Management System (CIMS),
https://www.floridacims.org, meets all state and rule requirements for traditional public schools and
incorporates all ESSA components for a support and improvement plan required for traditional public and
public charter schools identified as CSI, TSI and ATSI, and eligible schools applying for Unified School
Improvement Grant (UniSIG) funds.

Districts may allow schools that do not fit the aforementioned conditions to develop a SIP using the template in
CIMS.

The responses to the corresponding sections in the Department’s SIP template may address the requirements
for: 1) Title I schools operating a schoolwide program (SWD), pursuant to ESSA, as amended, Section
1114(b); and 2) charter schools that receive a school grade of D or F or three consecutive grades below C,
pursuant to Rule 6A-1.099827, F.A.C. The chart below lists the applicable requirements.

SIP Sections Title I Schoolwide Program Charter Schools

I-A: School Mission/Vision 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(1)

I-B-C: School Leadership, Stakeholder Involvement
& SIP Monitoring ESSA 1114(b)(2-3)

I-E: Early Warning System ESSA 1114(b)(7)(A)(iii)(III) 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(2)

II-A-C: Data Review 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(2)

II-F: Progress Monitoring ESSA 1114(b)(3)

III-A: Data Analysis/Reflection ESSA 1114(b)(6) 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(4)

III-B: Area(s) of Focus ESSA 1114(b)(7)(A)(i-iii)

III-C: Other SI Priorities 6A-1.099827(4)(a)(5-9)

VI: Title I Requirements
ESSA 1114(b)(2, 4-5),
(7)(A)(iii)(I-V)-(B)
ESSA 1116(b-g)

Note: Charter schools that are also Title I must comply with the requirements in both columns.

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 4 of 14

Page 140 of 314

DRAFT



Purpose and Outline of the SIP

The SIP is intended to be the primary artifact used by every school with stakeholders to review data, set goals,
create an action plan and monitor progress. The Department encourages schools to use the SIP as a “living
document” by continually updating, refining and using the plan to guide their work throughout the year. This
printed version represents the SIP as of the "Date Modified" listed in the footer.

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 5 of 14

Page 141 of 314

DRAFT



I. School Information

School Mission and Vision

Provide the school's mission statement.

The mission of St. Johns Classical Academy is to develop graduates in mind and character through a
classical, content-rich curriculum that emphasizes the principles of virtuous living, traditional learning,
and civic responsibility. We are building intelligent, virtuous American citizens.

Provide the school's vision statement.

The vision of St. Johns Classical Academy is to offer a unique option that provides students with
classical education. Scholars will receive a cohesive Classical education, which builds upon itself year
after year, creating a successful foundation for learning. Scholars will be intentionally taught the benefits
of a virtuous character and will be challenged through the lessons taught within the curriculum to develop
and strengthen their character. Our teachers will provide the support and attention scholars require in
order to meet the high expectations of a Classical education.

School Leadership Team, Stakeholder Involvement and SIP Monitoring

School Leadership Team
For each member of the school leadership team, select the employee name and email address from the
dropdown. Identify the position title and job duties/responsibilities as it relates to SIP implementation for
each member of the school leadership team.:

Name Position
Title Job Duties and Responsibilities

Bradley,
Anthony Principal

The Headmaster (Principal) will implement a traditional, classical, liberal
arts and
sciences curriculum.
• The Headmaster makes final decisions on curriculum, subject to the
approval of the Governing Board and in accordance with the affiliation
agreement with Hillsdale College’s Barney Charter School Initiative
(BCSI).
• The Headmaster, while chiefly the academic leader, is also responsible
for
the discipline, moral culture, operations, and financial oversight of SJCA.

Scherer,
Sierra Dean

The Dean leads teachers based on their mastery of an academic
discipline, their ability to convey knowledge to young people, and their
capacity to maintain order and decorum in the classroom.

The Dean additionally upholds and encourages scholars to uphold
SJCA’s Standards
of Virtue as follows: Citizenship, Courage, Honesty, Humility, Integrity,
Perseverance, Respect, Responsibility, and Wisdom.

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 6 of 14

Page 142 of 314

DRAFT



Stakeholder Involvement and SIP Development
Describe the process for involving stakeholders (including the school leadership team, teachers and
school staff, parents, students (mandatory for secondary schools) and families, and business or
community leaders) and how their input was used in the SIP development process. (ESSA 1114(b)(2))

Note: If a School Advisory Council is used to fulfill these requirements, it must include all required
stakeholders.

Parents and guardians’ (hereafter referred to as “parents”) support of
SJCA’s academic and moral mission is essential. Parents are encouraged to
learn more about SJCA’s philosophy and curriculum in order to help
support and guide their scholars. Community information nights are routinely conducted to provide
academic and cultural insights for the operation of SJCA.

SIP Monitoring
Describe how the SIP will be regularly monitored for effective implementation and impact on increasing
the achievement of students in meeting the State’s academic standards, particularly for those students
with the greatest achievement gap. Describe how the school will revise the plan, as necessary, to ensure
continuous improvement. (ESSA 1114(b)(3))

Monitoring will be conducted by way of classroom walkthroughs to access academic instruction of areas
being monitored. Additionally, review of lesson plans and grade books to determine student level of
mastery. As needed the school will revise instructional minutes being applied to the monitored areas.

Demographic Data
2023-24 Status
(per MSID File) Active

School Type and Grades Served
(per MSID File)

Combination School
KG-12

Primary Service Type
(per MSID File) K-12 General Education

2022-23 Title I School Status No
2022-23 Minority Rate [Data Not Available]

2022-23 Economically Disadvantaged (FRL) Rate [Data Not Available]
Charter School Yes
RAISE School No

2021-22 ESSA Identification
Eligible for Unified School Improvement Grant (UniSIG) No

2021-22 ESSA Subgroups Represented
(subgroups with 10 or more students)

(subgroups below the federal threshold are identified with an asterisk)
School Grades History

School Improvement Rating History
DJJ Accountability Rating History

Early Warning Systems

Using 2022-23 data, complete the table below with the number of students by current grade
level that exhibit each early warning indicator listed:

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 7 of 14

Page 143 of 314

DRAFT



Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Absent 10% or more days 14 6 5 7 0 0 0 0 0 32
One or more suspensions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Course failure in English Language Arts (ELA) 0 1 1 4 0 0 0 0 0 6
Course failure in Math 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Level 1 on statewide ELA assessment 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 6
Level 1 on statewide Math assessment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Number of students with a substantial reading deficiency as
defined by Rule 6A-6.0531, F.A.C. 0 1 1 6 0 0 0 0 0 8

Using the table above, complete the table below with the number of students by current grade
level that have two or more early warning indicators:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Students with two or more indicators 0 1 1 6 0 0 0 0 0 8

Using the table above, complete the table below with the number of students identified
retained:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Retained Students: Current Year 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
Students retained two or more times 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Prior Year (2022-23) As Initially Reported (pre-populated)

The number of students by grade level that exhibited each early warning indicator:

Grade
LevelIndicator Total

Absent 10% or more school days
One or more suspensions
Course failure in English Language Arts (ELA)
Course failure in Math
Level 1 on statewide FSA ELA assessment
Level 1 on statewide FSA Math assessment
Number of students with a substantial reading deficiency as defined by Rule
6A-6.0531, F.A.C.

The number of students by current grade level that had two or more early warning indicators:

Grade LevelIndicator Total
Students with two or more indicators

The number of students identified retained:

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 8 of 14

Page 144 of 314

DRAFT



Grade LevelIndicator Total
Retained Students: Current Year
Students retained two or more times

Prior Year (2022-23) Updated (pre-populated)
Section 3 includes data tables that are pre-populated based off information submitted in prior year's SIP.

The number of students by grade level that exhibited each early warning indicator:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Absent 10% or more school days 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
One or more suspensions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Course failure in English Language Arts (ELA) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Course failure in Math 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Level 1 on statewide FSA ELA assessment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Level 1 on statewide FSA Math assessment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Number of students with a substantial reading deficiency as defined
by Rule 6A-6.0531, F.A.C. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

The number of students by current grade level that had two or more early warning indicators:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Students with two or more indicators 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

The number of students identified retained:

Grade Level
Indicator

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Total

Retained Students: Current Year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Students retained two or more times 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

II. Needs Assessment/Data Review

ESSA School, District and State Comparison (pre-populated)
Please note that the district and state averages shown here represent the averages for similar school types
(elementary, middle, high school or combination schools). Each "blank" cell indicates the school had less
than 10 eligible students with data for a particular component and was not calculated for the school.

On April 9, 2021, FDOE Emergency Order No. 2021-EO-02 made 2020-21 school grades optional.
They have been removed from this publication.

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 9 of 14

Page 145 of 314

DRAFT



2022 2019
Accountability Component

School District State School District State

ELA Achievement* 56 57 57 61

ELA Learning Gains 49 55 53 59

ELA Lowest 25th Percentile 37 46 53 54

Math Achievement* 57 55 52 62

Math Learning Gains 51 60 49 59

Math Lowest 25th Percentile 44 56 46 52

Science Achievement* 57 51 54 56

Social Studies Achievement* 71 72 77 78

Middle School Acceleration

Graduation Rate

College and Career Acceleration

ELP Progress

* In cases where a school does not test 95% of students in a subject, the achievement component will be
different in the Federal Percent of Points Index (FPPI) than in school grades calculation.

See Florida School Grades, School Improvement Ratings and DJJ Accountability Ratings.

ESSA School-Level Data Review (pre-populated)

2021-22 ESSA Federal Index

ESSA Category (CSI, TSI or ATSI)

OVERALL Federal Index – All Students

OVERALL Federal Index Below 41% - All Students No

Total Number of Subgroups Missing the Target

Total Points Earned for the Federal Index

Total Components for the Federal Index

Percent Tested

Graduation Rate

ESSA Subgroup Data Review (pre-populated)

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 10 of 14

Page 146 of 314

DRAFT



2021-22 ESSA SUBGROUP DATA SUMMARY

ESSA
Subgroup

Federal
Percent of

Points Index

Subgroup
Below
41%

Number of Consecutive
years the Subgroup is Below

41%

Number of Consecutive
Years the Subgroup is

Below 32%

SWD

ELL

AMI

ASN

BLK

HSP

MUL

PAC

WHT

FRL

Accountability Components by Subgroup
Each “blank” cell indicates the school had less than 10 eligible students with data for a particular component
and was not calculated for the school. (pre-populated)

2021-22 ACCOUNTABILITY COMPONENTS BY SUBGROUPS

Subgroups ELA
Ach. ELA LG ELA LG

L25%
Math
Ach.

Math
LG

Math
LG

L25%

Sci
Ach. SS Ach. MS

Accel.

Grad
Rate

2020-21

C & C
Accel

2020-21

ELP
Progress

All
Students

SWD

ELL

AMI

ASN

BLK

HSP

MUL

PAC

WHT

FRL

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 11 of 14

Page 147 of 314

DRAFT



2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY COMPONENTS BY SUBGROUPS

Subgroups ELA
Ach. ELA LG ELA LG

L25%
Math
Ach.

Math
LG

Math
LG

L25%

Sci
Ach. SS Ach. MS

Accel.

Grad
Rate

2019-20

C & C
Accel

2019-20

ELP
Progress

All
Students

SWD

ELL

AMI

ASN

BLK

HSP

MUL

PAC

WHT

FRL

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY COMPONENTS BY SUBGROUPS

Subgroups ELA
Ach. ELA LG ELA LG

L25%
Math
Ach.

Math
LG

Math
LG

L25%

Sci
Ach. SS Ach. MS

Accel.

Grad
Rate

2017-18

C & C
Accel

2017-18

ELP
Progress

All
Students

SWD

ELL

AMI

ASN

BLK

HSP

MUL

PAC

WHT

FRL

Grade Level Data Review– State Assessments (pre-populated)
The data are raw data and include ALL students who tested at the school. This is not school grade data.
The percentages shown here represent ALL students who received a score of 3 or higher on the statewide
assessments.

An asterisk (*) in any cell indicates the data has been suppressed due to fewer than 10 students tested, or
all tested students scoring the same.

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 12 of 14

Page 148 of 314

DRAFT



III. Planning for Improvement

Area of Focus
(Identified key Area of Focus that addresses the school’s highest priority based on any/all relevant data
sources)

#1. Instructional Practice specifically relating to Math
Area of Focus Description and Rationale:
Include a rationale that explains how it was identified as a crucial need from the data reviewed.
One Area of Focus must be positive culture and environment. If identified for ATSI or TSI, each identified
low-performing subgroup must be addressed.
Math is an area of focus as we have lacked Math manipulatives to help scholars bridge the gap from the
concrete, one to one correlations to the abstract numercy.
Measurable Outcome:
State the specific measurable outcome the school plans to achieve. This should be a data based,
objective outcome.
The outcome expected from he additional Math supports will result in 50% of all our students being level 3
or above in math by the end of the school year.
Monitoring:
Describe how this Area of Focus will be monitored for the desired outcome.
Monitoring will be conducted by classroom walkthroughs with observations of instruction, review of lesson
plans and review of student gradebook materials.
Person responsible for monitoring outcome:
Anthony Bradley (anthony.bradley@stjca.org)
Evidence-based Intervention:
Describe the evidence-based intervention being implemented for this Area of Focus (Schools identified for
ATSI, TSI or CSI must include one or more evidence-based interventions.)

Rationale for Evidence-based Intervention:
Explain the rationale for selecting this specific strategy.

Tier of Evidence-based Intervention
(Schools that use UniSIG funds for an evidence-based intervention must meet the top three levels of
evidence as defined by ESSA section 8101(21)(A).)
Tier 1 - Strong Evidence
Will this evidence-based intervention be funded with UniSIG?
No
Action Steps to Implement
List the action steps that will be taken as part of this strategy to address the Area of Focus. Identify the
person responsible for monitoring each step.
Students will be provided instruction via use of manipulatives to help navigate from the concrete, to
pictorial to abstract math concepts.
Person Responsible: Anthony Bradley (anthony.bradley@stjca.org)
By When: Measured outcomes expected by 30 April 2024

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 13 of 14

Page 149 of 314

DRAFT



#2. Instructional Practice specifically relating to ELA
Area of Focus Description and Rationale:
Include a rationale that explains how it was identified as a crucial need from the data reviewed.
One Area of Focus must be positive culture and environment. If identified for ATSI or TSI, each identified
low-performing subgroup must be addressed.
St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park opened during the 23-24 school year. Located in the heart of
Orange Park on Kingsley Avenue, we are at the center of many Title 1 schools, including Grove Park
Elementary, Montclair Elementary and both Orange Park Junior High and High School. While our K-2 data
is at or above the district and state benchmark after the PM2 testing results, there was a decrease from
PM1 to PM2 scores in ELA The state and district assessments both showed a natural increase from PM1
to PM2 where as we did not. Our 4th grade students scored well below the state and district benchmark in
ELA. We want to see an increase among each assessment at or above the state and district benchmark in
ELA.

Measurable Outcome:
State the specific measurable outcome the school plans to achieve. This should be a data based,
objective outcome.
Expectation is that 50% of SJCA 4th graders will perform level 3 of higher on the PM3 closing out the
school year.
Monitoring:
Describe how this Area of Focus will be monitored for the desired outcome.
Scholar reading improvement will be monitored by teacher assessed direct reading during Studium and
using McCall Crabbs assessment for comprehension measurement.
Person responsible for monitoring outcome:
Anthony Bradley (anthony.bradley@myoneclay.net)
Evidence-based Intervention:
Describe the evidence-based intervention being implemented for this Area of Focus (Schools identified for
ATSI, TSI or CSI must include one or more evidence-based interventions.)

Rationale for Evidence-based Intervention:
Explain the rationale for selecting this specific strategy.

Tier of Evidence-based Intervention
(Schools that use UniSIG funds for an evidence-based intervention must meet the top three levels of
evidence as defined by ESSA section 8101(21)(A).)
Tier 1 - Strong Evidence
Will this evidence-based intervention be funded with UniSIG?
No
Action Steps to Implement
List the action steps that will be taken as part of this strategy to address the Area of Focus. Identify the
person responsible for monitoring each step.
Using supplemental reading materials purchased with SIP grant intensive reading instruction will be
provided to identified students. Instruction will occur during Studium, before and after school.
Person Responsible: Sierra Scherer (sierra.scherer@stjca.org)
By When: Improvement will be determined by 4/20/24

Clay - 0677 - St. Johns Classical Academy Orange Park - 2023-24 SIP

Last Modified: 2/9/2024 https://www.floridacims.org Page 14 of 14

Page 150 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Memorandum of Understanding between School Board of Clay County and Clay County Sheriff's Office

Description
This agreement outlines a partnership between the Clay County Sheriff's Office and the Clay County School board to enhance
educational services offered to Clay County Sheriff's inmates through Clay County Adult & Community Education.  
Funding for the expanded program has been awarded from the Adult Education and Family Literacy, Corrections Education
(AEFLA) grant to provide Adult Basic Education (ABE)/General Educational Development (GED) courses, English Speakers of
Other Languages (ESOL) courses, Integrated Education and Training (IET), as well as a full-time instructor who will also assist
in developing community partnerships that offer transitional and workforce training at the facility.  
It is anticipated that public safety will be promoted by a decrease to recidivism rates due to the facilitation of successful
reintegration into the workforce post-release.

Gap Analysis
This action will expand the partnership between Clay County Adult & Community Education and the Clay County Jail to
provide ABE/GED/IET courses, workforce and transition-related initiatives.

Previous Outcomes
Adult & Community Education presently offers one ABE/GED preparation course at the Clay County Jail.

Expected Outcomes
Approval will expand educational opportunities for inmates at the facility, add workforce-related services, and increase
community partnerships.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Family and Community Engagement
3:2 Collaborate with parents and community partners to increase stakeholder participation within our district.

Recommendation
School Board Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between The School Board of Clay County and Clay County Sheriff's
Office.

Contact
Roger Dailey, chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Kristin Rousseau, Supervisor of Adult & Community Education, kristin,rousseau@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
2023-2024 Corrections Education Grant: Award $88,547

Review Comments

Attachments

MOU School Board of Clay Cty and Clay County Sheriff's Office.pdf

Page 151 of 314

DRAFT



Page 152 of 314

DRAFT



Page 153 of 314

DRAFT



2/9/2024

Page 154 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 -  Proclamation #24-13 to Establish School Social Work Week

Description
Proclamation of School Social Work Week March 3-9, 2024

Gap Analysis
Recognizes the contributions of school social workers in supporting the academic success of our students.

Previous Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County recognized and appreciated the contributions of school social workers.

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize and further support the work of school social workers and their provision of services
that assist students and families in overcoming barriers to academic success.

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Heather McDonald 904-336-6900 heather.mcdonald@myoneclay.net; Laura Fogarty 904-336-6513

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

2024 School Social Work Week Proclamation.pdf

Page 155 of 314

DRAFT



SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION # 24-13 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, the importance of school social work through the inclusion of school social work programs 

and services has been recognized in the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 
6301 et seq.) and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq.); and 
 

WHEREAS, school social workers in Clay County are especially skilled in identifying and providing services to 
students who face serious challenges to school success, including poverty, disability, discrimination, abuse, 
addiction, bullying, loss of a loved one, and other barriers to learning; and 
 

WHEREAS, school social workers are needed more now than at any time in recent memory, as more 

students are struggling with mental and behavioral health disorders, with nearly 1 in 6 children from 2 
to 8 years old (17.4 percent) having a diagnosed mental, behavioral, or developmental disorder; and 
 

WHEREAS, individuals who wish to access community mental health services often find such  
services unavailable, inaccessible, or inadequate; and   

 

WHEREAS, school social workers maintain knowledge of school culture and school climate which are  
necessary for responsible school safety planning; and         

 

WHEREAS, school social workers serve as vital members of a school’s education team, playing a  
central role in creating partnerships between the home, school, and community to ensure student  
academic success; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby recognize the 
vital role school social workers play in the lives of students, and extend greetings and best wishes to all observing 
March 3-9, 2024 as School Social Work Week. 
 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 7th day of March, 2024. 
        
 
ATTEST:       
             
 
_______________________________          ________________________________ 
David S. Broskie                Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools         
Clay County, Florida     
 

Page 156 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2023-2024 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904)336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

03.07.24 - 23-24 Allocation Summary.pdf

Page 157 of 314

DRAFT



PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS    2023-2024 SUMMARY  Board Meeting, March 7, 2024

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2023-2024 ACTIONS

General Funds

RHS - 0431 -1.0 Teacher, VESC - IND Enrollment needs ($48,450) ($16,967) ($65,417)

RHS - 0431 1.0 Teacher, VESC - ASD Enrollment needs $48,450 $16,967 $65,417

BAF - 9050 -1.0 Coordinator I, Business Affairs, Insurance Dept. reorganization ($70,550) ($24,707) ($95,257)

BAF - 9050 1.0 Coordinator II, Business Affairs, Insurance Dept. reorganization $64,325 $22,527 $86,852

BAF - 9050 -1.0 Coordinator I, Business Affairs, Risk Dept. reorganization ($70,550) ($24,707) ($95,257)

BAF - 9050 1.0 Supervisor II, Risk Management & Employee Benefits Dept. reorganization $86,320 $30,229 $116,549

BAF - 9050 1.0 Insurance Assistant increased insurance needs $35,238 $12,340 $47,578

BAF - 9050 1.0 Risk Management Specialist Dept. reorganization $37,851 $13,255 $51,106

TOTAL: $82,634 $28,938 $111,572

Pending Board Approval 03/07/2024

Page 158 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Monthly Financial Reports for January, 2024

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending January 31, 2024.

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Strategy 2:  Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize
available resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.  Promote fiscal
transparency and communication.
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for January
2024.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

January 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

January 2024 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent $50,000 to $100,000.pdf

Page 159 of 314

DRAFT



Page 160 of 314

DRAFT



Page 161 of 314

DRAFT



Page 162 of 314

DRAFT



Page 163 of 314

DRAFT



Page 164 of 314

DRAFT



Page 165 of 314

DRAFT



Page 166 of 314

DRAFT



Page 167 of 314

DRAFT



Page 168 of 314

DRAFT



Page 169 of 314

DRAFT



Page 170 of 314

DRAFT



Page 171 of 314

DRAFT



Page 172 of 314

DRAFT



Page 173 of 314

DRAFT



Page 174 of 314

DRAFT



Page 175 of 314

DRAFT



Page 176 of 314

DRAFT



Page 177 of 314

DRAFT



Page 178 of 314

DRAFT



Page 179 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Budget Amendment Report for January 31, 2024

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for January 2024 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

23-24 Budget Amendment January 2024.pdf

Page 180 of 314

DRAFT



Page 181 of 314

DRAFT



Page 182 of 314

DRAFT



Page 183 of 314

DRAFT



Page 184 of 314

DRAFT



Page 185 of 314

DRAFT



Page 186 of 314

DRAFT



Page 187 of 314

DRAFT



Page 188 of 314

DRAFT



Page 189 of 314

DRAFT



Page 190 of 314

DRAFT



Page 191 of 314

DRAFT



Page 192 of 314

DRAFT



Page 193 of 314

DRAFT



Page 194 of 314

DRAFT



Page 195 of 314

DRAFT



Page 196 of 314

DRAFT



Page 197 of 314

DRAFT



Page 198 of 314

DRAFT



Page 199 of 314

DRAFT



Page 200 of 314

DRAFT



Page 201 of 314

DRAFT



Page 202 of 314

DRAFT



Page 203 of 314

DRAFT



Page 204 of 314

DRAFT



Page 205 of 314

DRAFT



Page 206 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2024

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted. These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair. These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated. Deletions are for property items received in
the month of January, 2024.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal. Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes. All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - February, 2024 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property. Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2024.pdf

Page 207 of 314

DRAFT



Page 208 of 314

DRAFT



Page 209 of 314

DRAFT



Page 210 of 314

DRAFT



Page 211 of 314

DRAFT



Page 212 of 314

DRAFT



Page 213 of 314

DRAFT



Page 214 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Contract Renewal - County-Wide Architectural Services up to $4 Million Contract Award

Description
Renew Contract as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
County-Wide Architectural Services up to $4 Million Contract Award.  Contract Period is April 6, 2024 through April 5, 2024.
The contract period is for one (1) year and is the first of two renewal options.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the services, and or products to meet their
needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Contract was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and
products to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original contracts were awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
County-Wide Architectural Services up to $4 Million Contract Award

Kasper Architects & Associates, 10175 Fortune Parkway #701, Jacksonville, FL 32256-
LS3P Associates LTD Corp, 4651 Salisbury Road #330, Jacksonville, FL 32250-
Brian Boatright Architect, 904 Plainfield Avenue, Orange Park, FL 32073-
Altman & Barrett Architects, 10245 Centurion Parkway N #105, Jacksonville, FL 32256-
Harvard Jolly Architecture, 6196 Lake Gray Blvd #105, Jacksonville, FL 32244-
Paul Stresing Associates Inc, 14617 Main Street, Alachua, FL 32615-
Bhide & Hall Architects 1329-C Kingsley Avenue, Orange Park, FL 32073-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
All funding necessary for the Architectural fees resulting from this contract are budgeted within the Educational Facilities Plan.
Fiscal impact will be based on the budget of the individual projects.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 215 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - BID Award

Description
Award BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Paint Bid #23-MA-327: Contract period is for a three (3) year period from April 1, 2024 through March 31, 2027 with the
option to renew for one (1) additional three (3) year contract period upon mutual agreement, in writing. Bid established for the
purchase of paint and or paint products.  The vendor awarded Section 1 is the lowest, most responsive and responsible qualified
bidder meeting specifications. Vendors awarded Section 2 are offering the required minimum discount to be considered
responsive and responsible bidders.     
b. Fire Sprinkler System Services - County Wide Bid #24-MA-328:  Contract Period is for a three (3) year period from April 1,
2024 through March 31, 2027 with the option to renew for one (1) additional three (3) year contract period upon mutual
agreement, in writing. Bid established for the purchase of all necessary labor, materials, equipment and transportation to provide
as needed, on-site services for the inspection and testing, and repair and replacement of fire sprinkler systems at designated
schools. The vendor awarded is the lowest, most responsive and responsible qualified bidder meeting specifications
c. Band Instruments and Related Services Bid #24-SCH-96:  Contract Period in Section 1 for firm fixed pricing on specified
instruments for a one (1) year period from March 7, 2024 through March 6, 2025. Contract Period in Section 2 for fixed
percentage discounts off catalog pricing for a three (3) year period from March 7, 2024 through March 6, 2027 with the option to
renew for one (1) additional three (3) year contract period upon mutual agreement, in writing. Bid established to provide a
competitive procurement vehicle for the purchase and/or repair of various musical instruments throughout the school year. The
Vendors awarded Section 1 are the lowest, most responsive and responsible qualified bidders meeting specifications. Vendors
awarded Section 2 are offering the required minimum discount to be considered responsive and responsible bidders.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the services, and or products to meet their
needs.

Previous Outcomes
Prior Board approved Bid will expire but it was used successfully during the past terms to provide quality services and products
to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendor to provide quality services and products at the terms and conditions listed in
the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Page 216 of 314

DRAFT



Recommendation
Award BID as follows:
a. Paint Bid #23-MA-327:   
      Section A:

Sherwin Williams Company 210 Blanding Blvd, Suite C, Orange Park, FL 32073-
      Section B:

PPG Architectural Finishes 14985 Old St Augustine Road, Suite 102, Jacksonville, FL 32258-
Florida Paints & Coating 2225 St Johns Bluff Road, Suite 1, Jacksonville, FL 32246-
Sherwin Williams Company 210 Blanding Blvd, Suite C, Orange Park, FL 32073-
Lowes Home Centers 1000 Lowes Blvd, Mooresville, NC 28117-

 
b. Fire Sprinkler System Services - County Wide Bid #24-MA-328: 

Security & Fire Electronics, Inc. (SAFE) – 2590 Dobbs Road, St Augustine, FL 32086-
 

c. Band Instruments and Related Services Bid #24-SCH-96:
Pending - Under Review-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Paint Bid #23-MA-327: The total estimated expenditure for the three (3) year contract for Section 1 and 2 is $150,000.
Estimated annual spend of $50,000 for 2024-25, $50,000 for 2025-26, and $50,000 for 2026-27 from General and Capital
Revenue.

b. Fire Sprinkler System Services - County Wide Bid #24-MA-328: The total estimated expenditure for the three (3) year
contract is $240,000. Estimated annual spend of $80,000 for 2024-2025, $80,000 for 2025-2026, and $80,000 for 2026-2027
from General Revenue.

c. Band Instruments and Related Services Bid #24-SCH-96: The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year contract for
Section 1 is $72,500. The total estimated expenditure for the three (3) year contract for Section 2 is $195,000.00. Estimated
annual spend of $65,000 for 2024-2025, $65,000 for 2025-2026, and $65,000 for 2026-2027 from General and Capital Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 217 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Contract Renewal - Independent Auditing Services

Description
Renew Contract as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Independent Auditing Services Agreement - RFP 19-BA-125: Contract Period is July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2027. The
contract period is for three (3) years and is the final renewal option.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Contract was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and
products to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original contracts were awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
a. Independent Auditing Services Agreement - RFP 19-BA-125:   

Purvis, Gray and Company, LLP, 2347 SE 17th Street Ocala, FL 34471-
 

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Independent Auditing Services Agreement - RFP 19-BA-125: The total estimated expenditure for the three (3) year contract
renewal is $________. Estimated annual spend of $____ for 2024-2025, $____ for 2025-2026, and $____ for 2026-2027 from
General Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 218 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Contract - Neola

Description
NEOLA® provides school districts with a complete service for developing and updating Board Bylaws and Policies,
Administrative Procedures and Forms, in electronic and printed format. Neola provides clients with a digital publishing platform
for clients to receive Neola materials, to work on customizing those materials, and to Publish and archive Board Adopted and
Superintendent Approved materials. The electronic format supports automatic linking from the table of contents and searching
based on keywords. NEOLA® is currently working with many superintendents and school boards in Florida, Indiana, Illinois,
Ohio, Michigan, Wisconsin and West Virginia.

Gap Analysis
The current online format for the District School Board Policies could be more user-friendly for stakeholders. Additionally, there
needs to be an established process to effectively maintain policies that are legally required and up to date. 

Previous Outcomes
Policies are currently drafted by Clay County Administrators in individual departments and are then submitted to the School
Board Attorney for review. Upon Board approval, the policies are published on the district website in PDF format.

Expected Outcomes
An online platform for School Board Policies that is easily navigated by stakeholders with regular updates to maintain
compliance with state and federal laws.

Strategic Plan Goal
Strategy 5.4 Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.
Strategy 5.5 Enhance the technology infrastructure in all school and district spaces to support teaching, learning,
communications, and operations.

Recommendation
To approve the purchase of Neola.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The estimated expenditure for Development Services is $60,720 payable in eight (8) payments over the twenty-four (24) month
period. Post Development estimated expenditure for Update Annual Subscription is $4,720 or $2,360 per Regular Update and the
Digital Publishing Annual Service Fee of $795. Additional expenses as stated in Agreement may apply.

Review Comments

Attachments

240124 Neola _ Draft.pdf

Page 219 of 314

DRAFT



PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2023   Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web) 

FOLLOW ALL PROCEDURES ON BACK OF THIS FORM
  Contract #______________________ 

Number Assigned by Purchasing Dept.   

BOARD MEETING DATE:

WHEN BOARD APPROVAL IS REQUIRED DO  
NOT PLACE ITEM ON AGENDA UNTIL  

REVIEW IS COMPLETED 
 Must Have Board Approval over $100,000.00 

Date Submitted: 
Name of Contract Initiator:      Telephone #: 
School/Dept Submitting Contract:   Cost Center # 
Vendor Name: 
Contract Title: 

Contract Term:    Renewal Option(s): 
Contract Cost: 
 BUDGETED FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

  Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 
  Funding Source:   Budget Line #_________________________________________________________________ 

 NO COST MASTER (COUNTY WIDE) CONTRACT  - SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

 INTERNAL ACCOUNT -  IF FUNDED FROM SCHOOL IA FUNDS – SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTLY TO SBAO
 REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT REVIEW PACKAGE  (when applicable): 
______ Completed Contract Review Form 
______ SBAO Template Contract or other Contract (NOT SIGNED by District / School) 
______ SIGNED Addendum A (if not an SBAO Template Contract) - When using the Addendum A, this Statement MUST BE included in the body of the Contract: 
               “The terms and conditions of Addendum A are hereby incorporated into this Agreement and the same shall govern and prevail over any conflicting terms and/or 
                conditions herein stated.” 
______ Certificate of Insurance (COI) for General Liability & Workers’ Compensation that meet these requirements: 
               COI must list the School Board of Clay County, Florida as an Additional Insured and Certificate Holder.  Insurer must be rated as A- or better. 

   General Liability = $1,000,000 Each Occurrence & $2,000,000 General Aggregate. 
   Auto Liability = $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit ($5,000,000 for Charter Buses). 
  Workers’ Compensation = $100,000 Minimum 

[If exempt from Workers’ Compensation Insurance, vendor/contractor must sign a Release and Hold Harmless Form.  If not exempt, vendor/contractor 
must provide Workers’ Compensation coverage]. 

______ State of Florida Workers Comp Exemption (https://apps.fldfs.com/bocexempt/) (If Applicable) 
 
 

______ Release and Hold Harmless (If Applicable) 
 

 **AREA BELOW FOR DISTRICT PERSONNEL ONLY ** 
CONTRACT REVIEWED BY: COMMENTS BELOW BY REVIEWING DEPARTMENT 

Purchasing Department    

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

School Board Attorney   

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

Other Dept. as Necessary 

Review Date 

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

PENDING STATUS:  YES    NO IF YES, HIGHLIGHTED COMMENTS ABOVE MUST BE CORRECTED BY INITIATOR 

FINAL STATUS  DATE:______________________ 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

Contract Type:   New □   Renewal □   Amendment □     Extension □      Previous Year Contract # 

Dr. Legutko
2/12/2024

336-6722
Business Affairs 9050

Neola
License Agreement with Neola, Inc.

X
Auto Renew annually until terminated in writingEffective upon signing by both parties

$60,720 for Development Services over the first 24 months, Digital Publishing Annual Service Fee $750, Update Annual Subscription $4,720   

Technology / Copyrighted Material 6A-1.012

Correct name to The School Board of Clay County not Clay County School District nor Clay County School Board

 

By Bertha Staefe at 1:11 pm, Feb 12, 2024

By Elaine at 1:23 pm, Feb 12, 2024

JPS

2/19/24

Indemnity is acceptable and legally sufficient. 

Name stated as School Board of Clay County needs to be consistent for 

entire Document. Otherwise acceptable.

240124

Page 220 of 314

DRAFT



PUR 1-3501 E. 10/05/2023   Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2022, SBAO (web) 

CONTRACT REVIEW PROCESS FOR “ALL” CONTRACTS 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Step 1: Contract Initiator and Vendor prepare draft contract 
              (School Board Attorney Office (SBAO) Template Contracts available on SBAO webpage are strongly encouraged) 

Step 2: Complete Contract Review Form, attach Required Documents to include the UNSIGNED Contract by the District / School. 
             
 

Step 3: If Funded by Budgeted Funds, submit the Contract Review Package to the Purchasing Department.  
             Purchasing will begin the contract review process and submit the contract to the SBAO for review. SBAO may reach out to                    
             Initiator and/or other Departments (Risk, IT,) with questions or concerns and will assist with contract revisions.  SBAO 
             will send the Contract Review Package back to the Purchasing Department for final processing and the return to Initiator. 
 
             Purchasing will log “District” Contracts (Cost/No Cost) on Contract Review Log and save copy of the Contract Review 
             Package PLUS the Final Signed Contract you’ve return to Purchasing in the Contract Review Team Drive.  

Step 5: The Initiator is responsible for finalizing the Contract which includes:  
             Addressing Comments/Revisions, Obtaining Required Signatures, Send District Final Signed Contract to Purchasing OR  
             Retain Internal Accounts Final Signed Contract at School per School Board Record Policy. 
 

             If there is a Cost associated with Contract, the Initiator must work with their Bookkeeper to finalize the Purchasing Process. 
                      Budgeted Funds require a District Purchase Order.   Internal Accounts require an IA Purchase Order. 

Step 4:  If Funded by Internal Account (IA), submit the Contract Review Package directly to SBAO.  
              Email:  contractreview@myoneclay.net 
             The SBAO will begin the contract review process and return it directly to Initiator  

For Contracts using Budgeted Funds or For No Cost / Master (County Wide) Contracts: 
Initiator submits Contract Review Package to Purchasing Department - See Step 3 

 

For Contracts using Internal Funds Individual to each School: 
 Initiator submits Contract Review Package direct to SBAO - See Step 4 
 

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that is intended to have legal effect. This may include MOUs, 
Interlocal Agreements, Service Agreements and Contracts.  Contracts document the mutual understanding between the parties as to 
the terms and conditions of their agreement, contain mutual obligations, and clearly state the agreement's consideration. The term 
consideration includes the cost of the services and/or products to be provided by second party (vendor or service provider) and any 
non-monetary performance. No school, department, or other organizational unit has authority to contract in its own name. All Board 
contracts must be made in the legal name of the Board, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida". The School or Department may 
extend this name to include the school or department as follows, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida o/b/o ________________ 
(insert the school or department name)" where o/b/o means "on behalf of". 
 
All contracts shall be reviewed and approved by the School Board Attorney and/or the Supervisor of Purchasing 
to ensure legality, compliance with Board policy, and to ensure the Board interests are protected before the 
authorized signatory may execute the contract. 
 
All contracts having a value of $100,000 or more shall be authorized by the Board at a regular or special meeting and signed by the 
Board Chairman.  All approved contracts having a value of less than $100,000 may be executed by the Superintendent or appropriate 
District administrator based on the value of the contract.  

1. All approved contracts having a value of $50,000 or more, but less than $100,000 shall be signed by the Superintendent, or 
the   person who has been designated, in writing by the Superintendent, as the Superintendent’s Designee at the time of the 
contract signing. All contracts executed pursuant to this subparagraph shall be reported to the School Board in a separate 
entry as part of the monthly financial report. 

2. All approved contracts having a value of $25,000 or more, but less than $50,000, shall be signed by the Superintendent, or     
       the Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs. 
3. All approved contracts having a value of less than $25,000 and contracts of any value described in Board Authorized 

Contracts above that are exempt from the requirement for Board approval, may be signed by the Superintendent, or the 
Assistant Superintendent for their Division, or Chief Officers, or Directors, or Principals. 

4. The Superintendent is authorized to approve contract amendments or change orders for the purchase of commodities and 
services up to the amount of ten (10) percent or $50,000, whichever is less, of the original contract amount that was 
previously approved by the Board. 

 

Employees who enter into agreements without authority may be personally liable for such agreements, whether oral or written. 
 

For assistance with legal-related matters, please visit the School Board Attorney’s Office (“SBAO”) webpage or call 904-336-6507 
For assistance with insurance-related matters, please visit the Business Affairs - Risk Management webpage or call 904-336-6745 
For assistance with District Purchasing, please visit the Business Affairs - Purchasing webpage or call 904-336-6736 

Page 221 of 314

DRAFT



 

©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL 
 

 

  

L icense  Agreement  wi th  Neo la ,  In c .  
  

  

I.  Parties 
  

This is an agreement (Agreement) between Neola, Inc. (Neola, Contractor) and The 
School Board of Clay County, Florida (Board). 

                                           
II.  Background 
  

Neola owns certain materials including materials referred to as “Templates.”  Among 
these Templates are: 

  
A. Templates for Board Bylaws and Policies, 

B. Templates for Administrative Procedures and Forms, and 

C. Templates for Updates to the Board Bylaws and Policies and Administrative 

Procedures and Forms. 

  
Neola licenses certain modified versions of the Templates for Board Bylaws and 
Policies, which are referred to as Board-Adopted Editions of the Bylaws and Policies, 
and modified versions of the Templates for Administrative Procedures and Forms, 
which are referred to as Superintendent-Approved Editions of the Administrative 
Procedures.  These modified versions may include materials specifically tailored for 
licensees (e.g. a school board in a school district).  Neola also licenses, through an 
Update Service, certain modified versions of the Templates for Updates, which 
modified versions supplement or replace portions of the Board-Adopted Editions of 
Bylaws and Policies or Superintendent-Approved Editions of Administrative 
Procedures and Forms.  As used in this agreement, the Board-Adopted Editions of 
the Bylaws and Policies, the Superintendent-Approved Editions of the Administrative 
Procedures, and any and all modified versions of the Board-Adopted Editions of the 
Bylaws and Policies and/or the Superintendent-Approved Editions of the 
Administrative Procedures that result from Neola’s Update Service or the Board’s 
initiative that is not related to a Neola Update may collectively be referred to as 
Licensed Materials. 
  
Neola creates the Licensed Materials by modifying the Templates through interaction 
with the Board or designee, and then Neola makes the Licensed Materials available 
to the Board for the Board’s use through digital publishing of the Licensed Materials.  
The process of modifying the Templates and the digital publishing of the Licensed 
Materials occurs through a web-based portal.  Neola may provide this web-based 
portal through its own resources or it may contract with a third-party vendor to 
provide this web-based portal.  At the time of signing this Agreement, Neola provides 
this web-based portal through BoardDocs, which is a product of Diligent 
Corporation. 

Page 222 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  2 

III. Board Intentions and Commitments 
  

The Board desires, through this Agreement, to: 
  

A. license a Board-Adopted Edition of Bylaws and Policies that will be created as set 

forth in Addendum B and have Neola digitally publish the same as set forth in 

Addendum B; 

 
B. license a Superintendent-Approved Edition of Administrative Procedures that will 

be created as set forth in Addendum B and have Neola digitally publish the same 

as set forth in Addendum B; and 

 
C. subscribe to Neola’s Update Service and thereby license future modified versions 

of the Board-Adopted Editions of the Bylaws and Policies and/or the 

Superintendent-Approved Editions of the Administrative Procedures that will be 

created as set forth in Addendum C and have Neola digitally publish the same as 

set forth in Addendum C. 

  
The Board acknowledges that the content of Neola’s Templates is dynamic because 
the passage of new laws and promulgation of new regulations occur continually, and 
these new laws and new regulations may require revision of the Licensed Materials 
to maintain legal compliance.  As a result, and in order to protect its investment in 
the initial license of these materials, the Board acknowledges a need to keep the 
Licensed Materials current and therefore the Board desires to renew the Update 
Service as provided in this Agreement. 
  
The Board also acknowledges the obligation to use Neola’s protocol for modifying and 
digitally publishing the Licensed Materials.  This protocol includes the use of a web-
based portal.  The Board therefore desires to perform certain of its obligations under 
this Agreement by cooperating in the formation of the Licensed Materials through 
Neola’s designated web-based portal.  The Board also desires to access the Licensed 
Materials through Neola’s designated web-based portal.  The Board further 
acknowledges that in order to maintain the digital publishing of the Licensed 
Materials, the Board must pay Neola an ongoing annual digital publishing service 
fee (the current amount of the fee is set forth in Addendum A). 
  
In view of the following, and for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, including the fees set forth in the Addenda hereto, 
the Board hereby purchases a license to the Licensed Materials as set forth herein 
and subscribes to Neola’s Update Service as set forth herein. The Board also agrees 
to pay Neola for any of the additional fees set forth in the Addenda including, but 
not limited to, those fees set forth in Addendum A, which relate, at least in part, to 
additional consulting fees.  The Board acknowledges that Neola, at its discretion, 
may increase the fees set forth in Addenda, particularly with respect to the Update 
Service.  Neola acknowledges that it will provide notice at least thirty (30) days before 
any increase is to be effective.  The Parties acknowledge that as part of creating the 
Board-Adopted and Superintendent-Approved Licensed Materials, which materials 
are created through a development process set forth in Addendum B, the Board will 
gain the benefit of three (3) Updates, as set forth in Addendum C, at no additional 
cost to the Board. 

 

IV.  Policy and Procedure Development and Update Service 

Page 223 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  3 

  
A. Development Services - In consideration for the Board’s performance under 

this Agreement including, but not limited to, performance of all applicable 

obligations set forth in the Addenda hereto and payment of all applicable fees 

provided in the Addenda hereto, and in accordance with the Board’s desires 

stated above: 

 

a. Neola and the Board or designee shall, according to the protocol set forth 

in Addendum B, develop a modified version of Neola’s Templates for Board 

Bylaws and Policies, which modified version will be licensed to the Board 

as provided below.  Neola shall, according to the protocol set forth in 

Addendum B, digitally publish this Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws 

and Policies; and 

 

b. Neola and the Board or designee shall, according to the protocol set forth 

in Addendum B, develop a modified version of Neola’s Templates for 

Administrative Procedures, which modified version will be licensed to the 

Board as provided below. Neola shall, according to the protocol set forth 

in Addendum B, digitally publish this Superintendent-Approved Edition of 

the Administrative Procedures and Forms. 

 
B. Update Service – In consideration for the Board’s performance under this 

Agreement including, but not limited to, performance of all applicable 

obligations set forth in the Addenda hereto and payment of all applicable fees 

provided in the Addenda hereto, and in accordance with the Board’s desires 

stated above, and to the extent that Neola prepares Update Templates, Neola 

and the Board or designee shall, according to the protocol set forth in 

Addendum C, update the Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and Policies 

and the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the Administrative Procedures 

based upon the Update Templates, which updated version will be licensed to 

the Board as provided below. Neola shall, according to the protocol set forth in 

Addendum C, digitally publish this updated version of the Board-Adopted 

Edition of the Bylaws and Policies and/or Superintendent-Approved Edition of 

the Administrative Procedures and Forms. 

V. License 
  

Neola hereby grants the Board a personal, non-exclusive, non-transferable perpetual 
license to the Board’s Board-Adopted Editions of the Bylaws and Policies and 
Superintendent-Approved Editions of the Administrative Procedures, as well as any 
versions thereof that are updated in accordance with this Agreement, all of which 
may be collectively referred to as Licensed Materials, consistent with the Board’s 
intentions as set forth in Section III – Board Intentions and Commitments above. 
  
This license is limited and restricted to those rights that are necessary for the Board 
to conduct its business and are specifically limited and restricted as set forth below 
in Section VI - Limitations and Prohibitions. 
  
Neola owns all copyrights and other intellectual property rights in the Templates and 
modified versions thereof including the Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and 
Policies, the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the Administrative Procedures, any 
Neola Forms, and all intermediary drafts leading thereto, as well as any modified 

Page 224 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  4 

versions of the Board-Adopted Editions of the Bylaws and Policies and/or the 
Superintendent-Approved Editions of the Administrative Procedures that result from 
the Update Service, the protocol for which is set forth in Addendum C. 
  
Neola is not obligated to assign any rights, including copyrights, in any materials to 
the Board. Neola specifically retains all title and ownership in all copies of the 
Templates and the modified versions thereof including the Board-Adopted Edition of 
the Bylaws and Policies, the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the Administrative 
Procedures and Forms, and all intermediary drafts leading thereto, as well as any 
modified versions of the Board-Adopted Editions of the Bylaws and Policies and/or 
the Superintendent-Approved Editions of the Administrative Procedures that result 
from the Update Service. 
  
Any “work” made pursuant to this Agreement is not a “work for hire” within the 
context of Title 17 of the United States Code, and therefore Neola retains all 
ownership in all “works” created under this Agreement.  To the extent that the Board 
or designee collaborates in the creation of any work under this Agreement, the Board 
hereby agrees to assign its rights therein to Neola except as provided below with 
respect to Board-Specific Materials (Board-Specific Materials). 
  
Neola acknowledges that the Board maintains all ownership of the Board-Specific 
Materials or Board-specific revisions or deletions in a template that is otherwise 
copyrighted to Neola.  Board-Specific Materials include the following: 

  
A. materials from the Board’s existing materials that the Board requests be 

incorporated during the drafting process; 

 
B. new materials that the Board develops in their entirety and exclusive of Neola; 

 

C. revisions or deletions that substantively depart from Neola’s Templates; and 

 

D. outdated material that the Board did not keep current with laws, regulations, 

and applicable standards. 

The Board acknowledges that Neola recommends against the use or incorporation of 
Board-Specific Materials, and while Neola will, at the request of the Board, 
incorporate Board-Specific Materials into the Licensed Materials, the Board 
acknowledges that it bears all risks associated with the Board’s decision to request 
that such Board-Specific Materials be incorporated.  Neola reserves the right to, but 
is not obligated to, advise the Board to seek its own legal review of Board-Specific 
Materials. 
  
Should Neola choose to use Board-Specific Materials for purposes outside this 
Agreement, the Board hereby grants Neola a non-exclusive, perpetual license to use, 
copy, distribute, prepare derivative works of, publicly perform, and publicly display 
the Board-Specific Materials.  The Board, however, may limit or restrict any license 
of Board-Specific Materials by providing Neola a written communication at the time 
the materials are provided to Neola regarding the limitation or restriction. 

VI.  Limitations and Prohibitions 
  

A. Copying 

 

a. The Board is hereby granted permission to make and distribute paper copies 

of the Templates, the Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and Policies, the 

Page 225 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  5 

Superintendent-Approved Edition of the Administrative Procedures and 

Forms, and any intermediary drafts leading thereto, so long as the copies are 

made for use by the Board or designee, or as may otherwise be required by 

the law, without the express written permission of Neola. 

 

b. All other copying or distributing of any Neola material, licensed or otherwise, 

is expressly prohibited without written consent from Neola.  Requests for 

additional copying should be made in writing to Neola in a timely manner. 

 
B. No Transferring 

 

a. The Board is prohibited from assigning, licensing, sub-licensing, or otherwise 

transferring this license in whole or part.  Furthermore, the Board is 

prohibited from selling, renting, leasing, or otherwise transferring the 

Templates or modified version thereof including the Board-Adopted Edition of 

the Bylaws and Policies, the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the 

Administrative Procedures and Forms, and all intermediary drafts leading 

thereto. 

 

C. Copyright Marking 

 

a. The Board must retain Neola’s copyright marking on any printed copy of the 

Licensed Materials so long as Neola’s intellectual property is still included in 

any version of the Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and Policies, and/or 

the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the Administrative Procedures 

and/or Forms. 

VII. Termination 
  

This Agreement is effective upon its signing by both parties. 
  
Either party may elect to terminate or cancel this Agreement at any time.  The party 
wishing to terminate this Agreement must do so by providing notice of its intention 
in writing to the other party. 
  
If the Board wishes to terminate the Update Service, the Board or designee must 
provide written notice of the same to Neola on or before January 1 or July 1 of any 
succeeding year.  If the Board elects to terminate this Agreement, the Board is 
obligated to pay any and all charges for services rendered before the date of the 
notification. 
  

  

Page 226 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  6 

If the Board elects to terminate this Agreement before completing its payment 
obligations under this Agreement, Neola and the Board or designee shall jointly 
determine the amount due and payable by the Board based upon materials provided 
to the Board as well as the amount of consultation provided to the Board. 

 
Except in the event of a breach by the Board, but the Board nonetheless elects to 
terminate this Agreement, and so long as the Board completes its payment 
obligations under this Agreement, then the Board may continue to use the Licensed 
Materials, royalty-free, so long as the use is consistent with terms and conditions 
provided in this Agreement. 
  
Likewise, except in the event of a breach by the Board, and so long as the Board has 
made payment for any Finalized Version of revisions obtained under the Update 
Service, then the Board may continue to use, royalty-free, the Finalized Version of 
the revisions so long as the use is consistent with terms and conditions provided 
herein. 
  
A waiver by either party of a breach or failure to perform under this Agreement will 
not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or failure to perform.  
  
If Neola elects to terminate this Agreement prior to delivery of the licensed materials, 
a partial refund may be made upon receipt of all drafting materials from the Board. 
If Neola elects to terminate this Agreement during the Update Service, then the Board 
may use, royalty-free, the materials as provided by Neola so long as the use is 
consistent with terms and conditions provided herein. 
  
Except in the event of a breach by Neola, while the Board may continue to use the 
materials after termination of this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions 
herein, Neola’s obligations under this Agreement will cease upon the termination. 
  
If the license agreement between Neola and the Board is terminated for any of the 
reasons described in this section, the Board will maintain Neola’s copyright marking 
so long as Neola’s intellectual property is still included in the revised version of the 
Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and Policies, and/or the Superintendent-
Approved Edition of the Administrative Procedures and/or Forms so that the Board’s 
use is consistent with the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
If the license agreement between Neola and the Board is terminated for any of the 
reasons described in this section, the Board is still bound by VI – Limitations and 
Prohibitions. 
 
Pursuant to Florida law, if this Agreement is terminated as set forth in this 
Agreement, Neola will provide the Board with copies of its currently adopted policies, 
as well as any drafts of proposed revisions currently under consideration, in digital 
format.  However, even though the Board has digitally published their Board Bylaws 
and Policies, Administrative Procedures, and Forms through Neola, Neola will not be 
obligated to support the Board’s digital access to any materials in the event the Board 
terminates this Agreement. 

  

  

Page 227 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  7 

VIII. Defenses 
  

Neola agrees to provide legal assistance or consultation to the Board, its officers, and 
employees so that the Board, its officers, and employees can better defend a third-
party claim that arises out of Neola’s alleged failure to license materials that 
accurately reflect compliance with applicable Federal or State law.  Nothing herein, 
however, obligates Neola to provide the sole or primary defense to the Board, its 
officers, and employees.  Neola may, at its sole discretion, withdraw its assistance in 
the event that Neola’s counsel determines, and so advises Neola, that the disputed 
matter is not about alleged failure to license materials that accurately reflect 
compliance with applicable Federal or State law.  
  
The Board shall be solely responsible for defending itself, its officers, and employees 
against any third-party claims having to do with legal compliance issues in Board-
Specific Materials. 
  
Neola shall be responsible for defending against any third-party claim of 
infringement of intellectual property based upon content of the licensed materials 
that is recommended by Neola and subsequently included in the Board’s Board-
Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and Policies and Superintendent-Approved Edition of 
the Administrative Procedures.  
  
The Board shall be solely responsible for defending itself, its officers, and employees 
against any third-party claims of infringement of intellectual property based upon 
any Board-Specific Materials. 

  

IX. Limited Liability and Hold Harmless 
  

To the extent permitted by the applicable law, Neola will not be liable to the Board, 
its officers, and employees for any third-party claim, damage, injury, or cost arising 
from the following: 

  
A. the Board’s, its officers’, and employees’ failure to use or implement the licensed 

materials, provided that such licensed materials are in compliance with 

applicable State or Federal law; 

 
B. the Board’s, its officers’, and employees’ failure to correctly interpret the 

licensed materials, provided that such licensed materials are in compliance 

with applicable State or Federal law; or 

 
C. the Board’s, its officers’, and employees’ decision to make substantive changes 

or revisions to the licensed materials, that is, create Board-Specific Materials. 

Although not obligated, Neola may recommend that the Board seek its own legal 
review of any Board-Specific Materials.  Whether or not the recommendation is made, 
the Board, its officers, and employees agree that Neola has no obligation to verify or 
approve the accuracy, validity, or completeness of the Board-Specific Materials. 
  
Further, the Board, its officers, and employees shall not submit for publication by 
Neola any materials, including Board-Specific Materials, that the Board does not 
have the right and/or permission to publish. 

  

Page 228 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  8 

Neola shall indemnify and hold the Board harmless for any damages arising from a 
third-party claim of infringement of intellectual property that was based solely upon 
content of the licensed materials that was recommended by Neola and subsequently 
included in the Board’s Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and Policies or the 
Superintendent-Approved Edition of the Administrative Procedures.  The Board shall 
indemnify and hold Neola harmless for any damages arising from a third-party claim 
of infringement of intellectual property based upon the content of the Board-Specific 
Materials or upon the content of any other materials contributed by the Board and 
subsequently incorporated into the Board’s version of a Neola template, even though 
it was determined that the content contributed by the Board did not substantively 
alter the Neola template. 

  

X. Confidentiality 
  

Nothing in this agreement obligates either party to disclose confidential information. 
  
Each party acknowledges that, during the term of this agreement, it may 
inadvertently gain access to certain confidential information of the other party 
concerning the other party’s business plans, employees and students’ personal 
information, clients, technology, and products.  Confidential information will 
include, but not be limited to, each party’s proprietary software and customer, 
employee, and/or student information.  Each party agrees that it will not use in any 
way, for its own account or the account of any third party, except as expressly 
permitted by this agreement, nor disclose to any third party (except as required by 
law or to that party’s attorneys, accountants and other advisors on a need to know 
basis), any of the other party’s confidential information, will take reasonable 
precautions to protect the confidentiality of such confidential information, and in the 
unlikely event of an accidental disclosure of confidential information, immediately 
notify the other party and return or destroy the information as directed by the other 
party. 

 
XI. Insurance 
  

Neola agrees to secure and maintain at all times during the term of this agreement, 
at Neola’s expense, Professional Liability Insurance covering Neola for all acts or 
omissions that may give rise to liability for services under this agreement with a 
2,000,000.00 limit of liability.  The Neola Associates designated to work with the 
Board, as well as the Corporate staff who may work with the Board pursuant to this 
Agreement, shall be covered by this insurance, which shall be provided by a 
reputable and financially viable insurance carrier.  Such insurance shall not be 
cancelled except upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Board. Neola shall provide 
the Board with a certificate evidencing such insurance coverage.  Further, Neola 
agrees to notify the Board within seven (7) business days of any material change in 
the insurance coverage required to be maintained by Neola. 
  
Neola agrees to secure and maintain at all times during the term of this agreement, 
at Neola’s expense, Workers’ Compensation Insurance for all employees of Neola as 
required by Florida Statutes.  

  

Page 229 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  9 

XII. Commercial Non-Discrimination 

  
Neola shall not discriminate on the basis of race, gender, gender identity or 
expression, religion, national origin, ethnicity, sexual orientation, age, or disability 
in the solicitation, selection, hiring, or treatment of subcontractors, vendors, 
suppliers, or commercial customers. Neola shall provide equal opportunity for 
subcontractors to participate in all of its public sector and private sector 
subcontracting opportunities, provided that nothing contained in this clause shall 
prohibit or limit otherwise lawful efforts to remedy the effects of marketplace 
discrimination that has occurred or is occurring in the marketplace, such as those 
specified in current Board policy.  Neola understands and agrees that violation of 
this clause could be considered a material breach of contract and may result in 
contract termination, debarment, or other sanctions. 

 

XIII. Additional Terms and Conditions 

  
A. Inspector General Audits  

In the event the Board is subjected to an inspection, review, investigation or audit 
by the Florida Office of the Inspector General or by any other Florida official with 
proper authority, Neola will work with the Board or designee to provide the Board 
with any non-confidential, non-privileged information in Neola’s possession 
related to its services under this Agreement. 

  
B. Representations & Warranties  

Neola represents and warrants to Board under this Agreement that: 
        

1. Neola is not aware of any other contract, agreement, business relationship or 

another arrangement that would preclude it from entering into, or from fully 

performing, the services required under this Agreement; 

 

2. Neola affirms and certifies that none of Neola’s employees or officers have ever 

had their professional license or certification in the State of Florida, or of any 

other jurisdiction, either denied, suspended, revoked, terminated or 

voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or restricted in 

any way; 

 
3. Neola affirms and certifies that it has not been convicted of a public entity 

crime as provided in § 287.133, Fla. Stats. (2017); and 

 
4. Neola affirms that it will comply with all laws, rules, codes, ordinances, and 

licensing requirements that are applicable to the conduct of its business, 

including those of Federal, State, and local agencies having jurisdiction and 

authority over its business activities. Neola shall further comply with 8 C.F. 

R. § 274a. of the Immigration and Nationality Act, the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, and all prohibitions against discrimination. 

  

Page 230 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  10 

 
C. Jessica Lunsford Act  

The State of Florida’s Jessica Lunsford Act requires all individuals who are 
permitted access on school grounds when students are present, individuals who 
may have direct contact with children or any student of Board, or who may have 
access to or control of school funds must be fingerprinted, and background 
checked. Neola shall require that all individuals in Neola’s organization in any 
such category submit to a level 2 FDLE background check and FBI screening, 
including fingerprinting, at the sole cost of the Neola.  If background screening is 
required by the Scope of Work provided under this Agreement, Neola shall not 
provide any services until Board or designee provides Neola with notice of 
clearance and issues official School District badges. 
  
All Neola’s employees must register as a visitor before entering Board property 
and properly display their School District badges. Consistent with the 
indemnification language contained in this Agreement, Neola reaffirms that it will 
indemnify and hold harmless Board, its officers, agents, and employees from any 
liability in the form of physical injury, death, or property damage resulting from 
the Neola’s failure to comply with the requirements of this paragraph or §§ 
1012.32, 1012.321, 1012.465, 1012.467, and 1012.468, Fla. Stats. (2017). 

  
D. Force Majeure  

 

Neither party are obligated to perform any duty, requirement or obligation under 

this Agreement if such performance is prevented by fire, hurricane, earthquake, 

explosion, wars, sabotage, accident, flood, acts of God, strikes, or other labor 

disputes, riot or civil commotions, or by reason of any other matter or condition 

beyond the control of either party, and which cannot be overcome by reasonable 

diligence and without unusual expense (“Force Majeure”).  In no event will a lack 

of funds on the part of either party be deemed Force Majeure.  

 

E. Required Enclosures 

The following attached Addendums are incorporated by specific reference: 
 

1. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 

Exclusion – Lower Tier Covered Transactions (Addendum E) 

 

2. Clay County School District Public Records Addendum (Addendum F) 

 

3. State of Florida Vendor Certification Regarding E-Verify (Addendum G) 

 

4. State of Florida Vendor Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies Lists 

(Addendum H)  

 

  

Page 231 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  11 

F. Notices  

All notices, requests, consents and other communications required or permitted 
under this Agreement must be in writing and hand delivered by messenger or 
courier service; faxed; emailed; or mailed by Registered or Certified Mail (postage 
prepaid), Return Receipt Requested, addressed to: 

  
AS TO BOARD: 
         

Name: ___________________ 
Address:__________________ 
_________________________  
Email: ___________________ 
Phone:  __________________ 
 

WITH COPY TO: 
   

Name: ___________________ 
Address:__________________ 
_________________________  
Email: ___________________ 
Phone:  __________________ 

  
AS TO NEOLA: 
  

Amanda Clapp, President 
Neola, Incorporated 
3914 Clock Pointe Trail, Suite 103                                            
Stow, OH 44224                                         
 
Email: clappaj@neola.com 
Phone: (330) 926-0514 
  

or to such other address(es) as the parties may mutually designate by notice 
complying with the terms of this Agreement.  Each such notice will be deemed 
delivered: 
  

1. On the date delivered, if by personal delivery, 

 

2. On the date faxed or emailed, if by facsimile or email, and 

 

3. On the date upon which the Return Receipt is signed, or delivery is 

refused, or the notice is designated by the postal authorities as not 

delivered if mailed to the proper address. 

  

Page 232 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  12 

XIV. General 
  

This Agreement is interpreted under Florida law, and, where applicable, Federal law, 
is severable and divisible, and is enforceable in law or equity. 
  
Neither this Agreement nor any right or interest herein may be assigned, transferred, 
or encumbered by either party without the prior written consent of the other party.  
Neola shall make no partial assignments of this Agreement including, without 
limitation, the partial assignment of any right to receive payments or compensation 
from the Board. 
  
Neola is, for all purposes arising under this Agreement, an independent contractor 
and Neola retains control over the manner and means of carrying out Neola’s 
responsibilities herein.  Neola and its officers, agents, or employees may not, under 
any circumstances, hold themselves out to anyone as being officers, agents, or 
employees of the Board. No officer, agent, or employee of Neola or the Board shall be 
deemed an officer, agent, or employee of the other party.  Neither Neola, nor any of 
its officers, agents, or employees thereof, shall be entitled to any benefits to which 
employees of the Board are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, 
retirement benefits, workers compensation benefits, injury leave, or other leave 
benefits. 
  
This Agreement represents the only agreement between the parties with respect to 
the subject matter described herein.  All other prior oral or written agreements 
respecting this subject matter are superseded.  
  
Further, any revisions to this Agreement must be made in writing and approved by 
both parties, except that Neola, at its own discretion, may, without the consent or 
approval of the Board, alter the fees set forth in the Addenda, alter the mode or 
manner in which digital publishing is accomplished, and/or alter the mode or 
manner by which the Update Service is accomplished.  The Board acknowledges 
Neola’s right and privileges in this regard and retains the right to terminate this 
Agreement if it does not agree with any alterations that Neola may make. 

  

  

Page 233 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  13 

Acknowledgment 
  
This Agreement is effective as of the date of the last signature of the individuals 

who have signed below.  By their signature, the individuals acknowledge their 

individual authority to bind their respective party and by their signature so bind 
their respective party to the duties and obligations defined herein. 

  
  

Clay County School Board                Neola, Inc. 

_______________________________________      _______________________________________ 
signature                                                signature 
  

Printed Name: _________________________ Amanda J. Clapp, Esquire 

Title:  Board Chair                                President/Board Chair 

Date:  _________________________________ Date:  ________________________________ 

 

Attest 

_______________________________________ 

signature 

Printed Name: _________________________ 

Title: Superintendent                              

Date:  _________________________________ 

  

  
  

Please note, this Agreement will be considered void if not executed by April 30, 2024 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 Initial _____________ 
  

Page 234 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  14 

  

A d d e n d u m  A  

A d d i t i o n a l  C h a r g e s  
  

  
  
The Board agrees to pay, when invoiced, for additional products and services, as 
described herein, at the following rates: 
  

A. Hourly rate for consultation in excess of the time 

provided in conjunction with the Bylaws and Policy 

Development Service, Administrative Procedures 

Development Service, and/or the Update Subscription 

$165 per hour per 
associate, plus travel 
time, mileage and 
expenses 

 

B. Hourly rate for any additional processing by 

Production Office as required during the Bylaws and 

Policy Development Service, Administrative Procedures 

Development Service, and/or in conjunction with the 

Update Subscription 

$36 per hour 

C. Per page cost for copying any materials requested by 

the Board 

$0.15 per page 

D. Shipping  
Actual shipment 
Charges 

E. Mileage Current IRS rate 

F. Hourly rate for travel per Associate $25 per hour 

G. Meals [in accordance with s. 112.061(6), Florida Statutes]   

Breakfast (if required to leave before 6:00 a.m.) $ 6 per person 

Lunch $11 per person 

Dinner (if travel extends beyond 8:00 p.m.) $19 per person 

H. Annual service fee for digital publishing $795 per year 

 
Neola reserves all rights to modify any of the scheduled prices above to the extent 
permissible. The Board will receive notice at least thirty (30) days before any increases 
are effective. 

  

  
These prices are effective as of January 1, 2024. 

  

  
  

Page 235 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  15 

  
  

Addendum B 
Bylaws and Policies Development Service 

Administrative Procedures Development Service 
  

 

I. General 

 

Modified versions of Neola’s Templates for Bylaws and Policies and modified versions 

of Neola’s Administrative Procedures will be developed as part of respective 

Development Processes, which are set forth below.  The Bylaws and Policies 

developed as part of the process described in V – The Bylaws and Policies Drafting 

Process below will be presented to the Board for adoption and the Administrative 

Procedures developed as part of the process described in VI – The Administrative 

Procedures Drafting Process below will be presented to the Superintendent for 

approval, and upon the adoption and/or approval, Neola will digitally publish these 

materials. 

 

II. Neola Associates and Board’s Primary Contact 

The Board’s Primary Contact (Primary Contact) is identified in Addendum D. 
 
The Neola Associates who may participate in the drafting process with the Board or 
designee during the Development Services include Mr. Thomas Wittmer, Esquire, 
Mrs. Annette Martinson, Mrs. Frances St. James, Mr. Thomas Young, III, Esquire, 
Mrs. Melinda McNichols, Esquire, Mr. Patrick Corbett, and/or Ms. Amanda J. Clapp, 
Esquire. 

 

III. Face-to-Face Consultation 

Neola will provide up to eighty (80) hours of face-to-face consultation time during 
which the designated Associates will work with drafting teams (which are Board staff 
members designated by the Primary Contact to consider the templates for specific 
sections of the bylaws and policies and/or the administrative procedures) during 
work sessions where modified versions of the bylaws and policies and administrative 
procedures will be developed.  
 

Except for unusual circumstances, at least two (2) Associates will be present during 
each work session.  Regardless of the number of Associates present at work sessions, 
only the time required for that meeting will be counted toward allotted eighty (80) 
hours of consultation time.  Two (2) Associates will also be present during the 
Administrative Procedures Drafting Process.  It will be the Board’s decision to 
determine how the eighty (80) hours of consultation shall be allocated between V – 
The Bylaws and Policies Drafting Process and VI – The Administrative Procedures 
Drafting Process.    
 

If the Board prefers two drafting teams to work simultaneously, requiring at least 
one Associate to meet with each group, then the time spent in each meeting is 
counted toward the eighty (80) total hours of consultation time.  

 
Furthermore, if more than eighty (80) hours of consultation time are required to 
complete the Bylaws and Policies and the Administrative Procedures and any Board-
Specific Materials, as set forth in or that are developed during the work described in 

Page 236 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  16 

V – The Bylaws and Policies Drafting Process and VI – The Administrative Procedures 
Drafting Process in this addendum, the Board will be billed for the additional time 
spent by each Associate who participates in the drafting sessions at the hourly rate 
for the additional face-to-face consultation set forth in Addendum A. 

 

IV. Processing Time                                                          

Neola will provide up to one hundred fifty (150) hours of processing time so that the 
modified versions of the bylaws and policies and administrative procedures can be 
processed by Neola’s production staff.  If more than one hundred fifty (150) hours is 
required to process the modified versions of the Bylaws and Policies, the 
Administrative Procedures, and Board-Specific Materials, as described in V - License 
of the License Agreement or that are developed during the drafting processes 
described in V – The Bylaws and Policies Drafting Process and VI – The Administrative 
Procedures Drafting Process in this addendum, the Board will be billed the hourly 
rate for additional processing time as set forth in Addendum A. 

 

V. The Bylaws and Policies Drafting Process 

  
The Board Approved Edition of the Bylaws and Policies will be developed as follows: 

  

Step 1: Designating Contacts 
  
When executing this agreement, the Board shall designate as the Primary 
Contact a staff member who will coordinate the Board’s work during the 
Board Bylaws and Policies Development Process and provide Neola with the 
contact information for this representative by completing the form included 
as Addendum D. 
  
On Addendum D, the Board shall provide contact information for the Board’s 
IT Staff Member who is authorized to work with Neola and BoardDocs IT staff 
to optimize the connection for working on Neola’s materials on the BoardDocs 
platform.  
  
Further, on Addendum D the Board will provide contact information for the 
staff member who is authorized to be the Super Publisher on the Board’s 
BoardDocs site. 
 

Step 2: Setting up BoardDocs Policy Platform 
  

A. Neola will establish a BoardDocs console for the Board and load 

the Neola licensed Templates to the console for use during the 

Board Bylaws and Policies drafting process. 

 

B. Training will be provided for the Board’s Super Publisher on how 

to use the BoardDocs site. 

 

  

Page 237 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  17 

C. The Primary Contact shall designate Board staff members who will 

access templates, edit and save material, and those who will have 

view-only access to the draft documents on the site. The Super 

Publisher will create BoardDocs user accounts for each staff 

member so designated.          

  

Step 3: Planning the Drafting Project 
  
No later than eight weeks from the effective date of the License Agreement, 
the Board’s representative shall meet and confer with the designated Neola 
Associates. 
  
During this initial consultation, the Board’s representative and the Neola 
Associates shall do the following: 
  

A. develop a timeline for the project; 

 
B. identify the degree to which the Board and Board staff will be 

involved in the sessions described in Step 5 below; 

 
C. identify the Board staff members who will participate in the 

orientation session described in Step 4 below; 

 
D. establish a date for the orientation session and a schedule of work 

sessions that will be facilitated by Neola; and 

 
E. establish the email addresses at which the Board will be notified 

when Neola has saved material on the BoardDocs site, and the 

email address the Board will use to notify Neola when marked-up 

materials have been saved on the BoardDocs site. 

  
The Primary Contact shall also provide a list of staff members who are 
designated to serve on the drafting teams for the Board Bylaws and Policies 
Drafting Process. 

  
Step 4: Orienting Staff to the Drafting Process 
  

  Drafting teams designated by the Primary Contact shall participate in an 
orientation session of up to two (2) hours about the expectation of staff during 
the drafting process and on the use of the BoardDocs site. 
  

Step 5: Preparing the First Draft of the Bylaws and Policies 
 

The Neola templates will be made available in the appropriate folder on the 
Board’s BoardDocs site. 
  
The designated staff members shall review the Neola templates before their 
scheduled sessions; make tentative choices provided in those templates and 
save their work on the BoardDocs site. 
  

Page 238 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  18 

The designated staff members shall meet with the Neola Associates for the 
scheduled sessions so that the choices that were selected from Neola’s 
templates can be reviewed and a draft finalized.  
  
If the designated staff have not reviewed the Neola templates before their 
scheduled session, made the tentative choices provided in those templates, 
and saved their work on the BoardDocs site, the Board or designee may 
contact the Neola Associates to re-schedule the session (subject to potential 
penalties listed further in this Step).  If the designated staff have not done 
their homework, but decides to have the session, the Board recognizes that, 
in all likelihood, it will take longer to complete the necessary work. 

  
The schedule may also include up to five (5) four (4)-hour Board workshops 
so that the Board can review the policy recommendations of the staff, ask 
questions of the staff who participated in the drafting process, and suggest 
revisions.  These workshops shall be publicly noticed pursuant to the State 
law and will be facilitated by the designated Neola associates.  The twenty (20) 
hours of Board workshops may be allocated as part of the eighty (80) 
consultation hours that have been allocated for the Development of Bylaws 
and Policies and Administrative Guidelines or the Board may be billed at the 
hourly rate for additional face-to-face consultation time set forth in 
Addendum A. 

  
The drafting schedule will provide for the work to be accomplished in six (6)-
hour face-to-face sessions. If virtual sessions shall be utilized for any reason, 
the work sessions shall be at a minimum, three (3) hours in length.   The 
orientation meeting will not be counted toward the eighty (80) hours of 
consultation. 

  
When the agreed-upon work sessions begin, if a scheduled work session is 
cancelled or rescheduled by the Board or designee less than five (5) business 
days before the date of that session, Neola reserves the right to charge the 
Board for six (6) hours at the hourly drafting rate for the cancelled session.  
Conversely, if Neola cancels or reschedules a work session less than five (5) 
days before the date of the scheduled session, Neola reserves the right to add 
an additional six (6) hours of face-to-face consulting time.  If a scheduled work 
session is cancelled or rescheduled more than five (5) business days before 
the date of the session, there will be no cancellation charge or award of 
additional hours. 

  
  

Page 239 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  19 

As part of the fee paid for the Bylaws and Policies Development Service and 
the Administrative Procedures Development Service, the Board will receive 
benefit of the first three (3) Regular Updates that are published after the work 
on policy development described in Step 5 above begins, as well as any Special 
Updates published during the period covered by those three (3) updates. As 
part of the cost of the Bylaws and Policies Development Service and the 
Administrative Procedures Development Service, these updated policies will 
either be incorporated into the drafts if the policy development phase has not 
concluded. However, if the policy development phase has concluded and the 
Board has adopted the Bylaws and Policies, the updates will be provided in 
the manner described in Addendum A of the License Agreement.  

  

Step 6: Submitting the First Draft to Neola 
  
After Neola’s Board Bylaws and Policies Templates for Sections 0000 through 
9000 have been marked-up according to Neola’s protocols and saved into the 
appropriate folder on BoardDocs, the Primary Contact will notify Neola by 
email. 

  
       Step 7: Processing the First Draft 

  
Upon receiving notice by email from the Primary Contact that Neola’s Board 
Bylaws and Policies Templates for Sections 0000 through 9000 have been 
marked-up according to Neola’s protocols and saved into the appropriate 
folder on BoardDocs, Neola shall access the marked-up files on the Board’s 
BoardDocs site, prepare a First Draft of the marked-up material by cleaning 
up the documents, place the First Draft back onto the Board BoardDocs site 
in the appropriate folder, and notify the Primary Contact by email. 
  
Step 8: Reviewing the First Draft by the Board 
  
Upon receiving notice by email from Neola that the First Draft has been saved 
into the appropriate folder on BoardDocs, the First Draft should be reviewed 
by the appropriate Board personnel for accuracy and, if necessary, additional 
edits should be made. 
  
If the Board prefers to review the material in the First Draft in hard copy, the 
Board or designee may print those hard copies from their BoardDocs site.  If 
requested by the Board, Neola will produce hard copy of this material at the 
cost set forth in Addendum A. 
  
If additional revisions are made during the review by the drafting teams, the 
additional edits shall be marked using Neola’s protocols, and only the revised 
Bylaws and Policies should be saved in the appropriate folder on the 
BoardDocs site.   
  
After saving the revised material, the Board or designee will notify Neola by 
email of the same. 
  
If it is determined that no additional revisions to the First Draft are needed, 
the First Draft will be moved into the appropriate folder on BoardDocs for 
review by the Board.  The process should proceed to Step 11. 

  

Step 9: Processing Edits to the First Draft 
  

Page 240 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  20 

Upon receiving notice by email from the Board or designee that additional 
edits to the First Draft have been made, according to Neola’s protocols, and 
saved to the appropriate folder on BoardDocs, Neola shall access on the 
Board’s BoardDocs site the marked-up files that reflect the edits to bylaws 
and policies in the First Draft, prepare a Second Draft of the marked-up 
material by cleaning up the bylaws and policies that were edited and adding 
them to the material from the First Draft that did not need further edits, place 
the Second Draft back onto the Board BoardDocs site in the appropriate 
folder, and notify the Primary Contact by email.  

  

Step 10: Reviewing the Second Draft by the Board 
  
The Second Draft that has been saved on BoardDocs should be reviewed by 
appropriate Board personnel for accuracy. 
  
If it is determined that all edits to the First Draft have been made accurately, 
the Second Draft will be moved into the appropriate folder on BoardDocs to 
be reviewed by the Board. 

  

     Step 11: Reviewing the First or Second Draft with the Board 
  
The appropriate draft will be reviewed with the Board at a publicly-noticed 
meeting.  This review should be facilitated by the Superintendent or the 
Primary Contact.  This review may be facilitated by the Board’s designated 
Neola Associate if enough face-to-face consultation time remains, or if the 
Board chooses to pay for additional face-to-face consultation time for this 
purpose.  
  
If it is determined that no additional revisions are needed, the draft that was 
reviewed by the Board will be moved into the appropriate folder on BoardDocs, 
and the process should proceed to Step 13. 
  
If additional revisions are made during the Board review, the Board or 
designee shall note the additional edits by marking-up the Templates 
according to Neola’s protocols, and only these revised policies should be saved 
in the appropriate folder on the BoardDocs site.  
  
After saving this material, the Board or designee will notify Neola by an email.  
  

     Step 12: Processing Board Edits into the Final Draft 
  
Upon notification by email that the materials in the appropriate folder on the 
BoardDocs site are ready to be processed into a Final Draft, Neola will prepare 
a Final Draft of the Board’s Board Bylaws and Policies that reflects the most 
current version of each policy.  That Final Draft will be saved in the 
appropriate folder on the Board’s BoardDocs site, and Neola will notify the 
Primary Contact by email of the same. 
  

  

Page 241 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  21 

Step 13: Board Adoption of the Final Draft 
  
Upon notification by email that the Final Draft has been moved to the 
appropriate folder on the Board’s BoardDocs site, a recommendation to adopt 
the Bylaws and Policies should be placed on the agenda at a publicly-noticed 
meeting of the Board. 
 

     Step 14: Notifying Neola of Board Adoption of the Bylaws and Policies 
  
After the Board takes formal action to adopt the Board Bylaws and Policies, 
the Board or designee shall notify Neola’s Production Office by email of the 
date of adoption by the Board of Education.  
 
Step 15: Publishing the Board-adopted Edition of the Bylaws and Policies 
  
Once notified of the date of adoption, Neola will then publish the Board-
adopted Edition of the Board Bylaws and Policies on the Board’s BoardDocs 
site.  Neola will notify the Primary Contact by email when the adopted policies 
have been published. 

  
The Board’s BoardDocs site will be hosted on multiple servers, and all publishing of 
Board documents will be made by Neola personnel.  Neola retains all proprietary 
rights associated with digitally publishing the Board’s documents. 
  
Neola’s obligation to digitally publish the materials licensed from Neola is subject to 
the Board maintaining its subscription to the Update Service and paying the annual 
service fee.  Neola reserves the right to and may cease publication of the licensed 
materials if the Board fails to maintain its subscription to the Update Service or fails 
to pay the annual service fee. 
  
If the Board chooses to maintain a printed copy of their Neola materials, the Board 
or designee may print the material from their BoardDocs site.  If requested by the 
Board, Neola will produce a hard copy of this material at the cost set forth in 
Addendum A. 

  

VI. The Administrative Procedures Drafting Process 

Upon completion of the Bylaws and Policies development process described in V 
above, the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the Administrative Procedures that 
is licensed to the Board will be developed as follows: 

  

Step 1: Planning the Drafting Project 
  
No later than eight weeks from the adoption date of the Board’s Board Bylaws 
and Policies, the Primary Contact shall meet and confer with the designated 
Neola Associates about the development of the Administrative Procedures. 
  

         During this initial consultation, the Primary Contact and the Neola 
Associate shall do the following: 

  
A.     develop a timeline for the project; 
  
B.     identify the Board staff members who will participate in the 

sessions described in Step 2 below; 
  

Page 242 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  22 

C.     develop a tentative schedule of the sessions that will be 
facilitated by the Neola Associate; 

  
D.     confirm that the information from Addendum D is still accurate; 

and 
  

E.     confirm that the email addresses at which the Board will be 
notified when Neola has saved material on the BoardDocs site, 
and the email address the Board will use to notify Neola when 
marked-up materials have been saved on the BoardDocs site are 
still accurate. 

 
The Primary Contact shall also provide a list of staff members who are 
designated to serve on the drafting teams for the Administrative Procedures 
Drafting Process. 
  

Step 2: Preparing the First Draft of the Administrative Procedures 
  
The Neola templates will be made available in the appropriate folder on the 
Board’s BoardDocs site. 
  
The drafting teams shall review the Neola Templates before their scheduled 
sessions, make tentative choices provided in those templates, and save their 
work in the appropriate folder on the BoardDocs site. 
  
The drafting teams shall meet with the Neola Associate for the scheduled work 
sessions so that the choices that were selected from Neola’s Templates for 
Administrative Procedures can be reviewed and a draft finalized. 
  
If the drafting teams have not reviewed the Neola Templates before their 
scheduled session, made the tentative choices provided in those templates, 
and saved their work on the BoardDocs site, the Primary Contact may contact 
the Neola associate to re-schedule the session (subject to potential penalties 
outlined herein).  If the drafting team has not done the homework, but decide 
to have the session, the Board recognizes that, in all likelihood, it will take 
longer to complete the necessary work. 
  
The designated Neola Associates will be available for the face-to-face 
consultation hours that are remaining from the time used for the development 
of the Board Bylaws and Policies for the development process of the 
Administrative Procedures.  If additional face-to-face consultation hours are 
required to complete the development process for the Administrative 
Procedures, then the Board will be billed for the additional face-to-face 
consultation at the hourly rate for the additional consultation set forth in 
Addendum A. 

  
  

Page 243 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  23 

When the agreed-upon work sessions begin, if a scheduled work session is 
cancelled or rescheduled by the Board less than five (5) business days before 
the date of that session, Neola reserves the right to charge the Board for six 
(6) hours at the hourly drafting rate for the cancelled session.  Conversely, if 
Neola cancels or reschedules a work session less than five (5) days before the 
date of the scheduled session, Neola reserves the right to add an additional 
six (6) hours of face-to-face consulting time.  If a scheduled work session is 
cancelled or rescheduled more than five (5) business days before the date of 
the session, there will be no cancellation charge or award of additional hours. 

  

Step 3: Submitting the First Draft to Neola 
  
After Neola’s Administrative Procedures Templates for Sections 1000 through 
9000 have been marked-up according to Neola’s protocols and saved into the 
appropriate folder on BoardDocs, the Primary Contact will notify Neola by 
email.  

  
Step 4: Processing the First Draft for the Board 
  
Upon receiving notice from the Primary Contact by email that Neola’s 
Templates for Administrative Procedures for Sections 1000 through 9000 
have been marked-up according to Neola’s protocols, and saved in the 
appropriate folder on the BoardDocs site, Neola shall access the marked-up 
files on the Board’s BoardDocs site, prepare a First Draft of the marked-up 
material by cleaning up the documents, place the First Draft back onto the 
Board BoardDocs site in the appropriate folder, and notify the Board by email. 

  
Step 5: Reviewing the First Draft by the Board 
  
Upon receiving notice by email from Neola that the First Draft has been saved 
into the appropriate folder on BoardDocs, the First Draft should be reviewed 
by the appropriate drafting teams for accuracy and, if necessary, additional 
edits should be made. 
  
If the Board prefers to review the material in the First Draft in hard copy, the 
Board or designee may print those hard copies from their BoardDocs site.  If 
requested by the Board, Neola will produce hard copy of this material at the 
cost set forth in Addendum A. 
  
If additional revisions are made during the review by the drafting teams, the 
additional edits shall be marked using Neola’s protocols, and only the revised 
Administrative Procedures should be saved in the appropriate folder on the 
BoardDocs site.  
  
After saving the revised material, the Board or designee will notify Neola by 
email of the same. 

  
If it is determined that no additional revisions are needed, the draft in the 
First Draft AP – Clean section on the Board’s BoardDocs site should be 
recommended to the Superintendent for approval. 
  
After Board’s or designee’s approval of the material in the First Draft AP Clean 
section on the Board’s BoardDocs site, the Board or designee shall notify 
Neola’s Production Office of the date of approval.  

  

Page 244 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  24 

Step 6: Processing the Final Draft 
  
Upon notification that the materials from the Board’s BoardDocs site are 
ready to be processed, Neola will prepare a Final Draft of the Board’s 
Administrative Procedures that reflects the most current version of each 
guideline.  That Final Draft will be saved in the appropriate folder on the 
Board’s BoardDocs site, and Neola will notify the Primary Contact by email.  

  

Step 7: Notifying Neola of the Superintendent’s Approval of the 
Administrative Procedures 

  
Upon notification that the Final Draft of the Superintendent-Approved 
Administrative Procedures have been saved in the appropriate folder on the 
Board’s BoardDocs site, the Primary Contact shall recommend the approval 
of the Administrative Procedures to the Superintendent. 
  
After the Superintendent approves the Administrative Procedures, the 
Primary Contact shall notify Neola’s Production Office by email of the date of 
that approval. 

 

Step 8: Publishing the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the 
Administrative Procedures 

  
Neola will then publish the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the 
Administrative Procedures on the Board’s BoardDocs site.  Neola will notify 
the Primary Contact by email when the approved Procedures have been 
published. 
  
If the Board chooses to maintain a printed copy of the Licensed Materials, the 
Board or designee may print the material from their BoardDocs site.  If 
requested by the Board, Neola will produce hard copy of this material at the 
cost set forth in Addendum A. 

  

VII.  Forms 

Neola will provide, at no additional charge, a license to use Neola’s Forms that 
complement the Templates for Administrative Procedures.  This license is consistent 
with the privileges and obligations provided with the other licenses being granted to 
the Board. 
  
If the Board chooses to customize Neola’s Template forms in any way, (e.g., add the 
Board or district name and logo) or to substitute current Board forms for selected 
Neola Template forms, the cost incurred by the Board shall be for the time required 
to process these changes and/or format the current Board forms.  The cost for this 
additional processing time shall be at the hourly rate set forth in Addendum A. 

  

Page 245 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  25 

VIII. Payment Obligations 
  

In consideration for the License to the Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and 
Policies, the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the Administrative Procedures, 
Neola’s Forms Templates, Digital Publishing of the Licensed Materials, Neola’s 
consultation, and other good and valuable consideration provided by Neola, the 
Board shall pay Neola sixty-thousand-seven-hundred-twenty dollars ($60,720.00), 
according to the following schedule: 

  

• $7,590.00    three (3) months after execution of this Agreement. 

• $7,590.00    six (6) months after execution of this Agreement. 

• $7,590.00 nine (9) months after execution of this Agreement. 

• $7,590.00  twelve (12) months after execution of this Agreement. 

• $7,590.00 fifteen (15) months after execution of this Agreement. 

• $7,590.00 eighteen (18) months after execution of this Agreement. 

• $7,590.00 twenty-one (21) months after execution of this Agreement. 

• $7,590.00 twenty-four (24) months after execution of this Agreement. 

  
The Board agrees that all payments will be payable upon receipt of an invoice and 
will be remitted within forty-five (45) days from the receipt of the invoice, except for 
fees that Board may dispute in good faith for reasons outlined in writing by Board 
within ten (10) days after receiving such invoice.  Invoices for fees or other 
compensation for services or expenses will be submitted to the Board in detail 
sufficient for a proper pre-audit or post-audit thereof.  If necessary, Neola will comply 
with F.S. 218.74(4) when assessing any service charge to any overdue amounts 
under this Agreement. 

  
As noted above, the Board will also receive at no additional cost the first three (3) 
Regular Updates, as well as any Special Updates published during the period covered 
by those three (3) updates, that are published after the work on policy development 
described above in V – The Bylaws and Policies Drafting Process commences. The 
Board’s only cost associated with these three (3) Regular Updates will be 
reimbursement of the Board’s designated Associates’ expenses that are related to 
consultation provided for an update, if additional visits are needed to review the 
update templates.  Those costs would include mileage at the current IRS rate, travel 
time, meals at the rates set forth in Addendum A, tolls, parking, lodging and airfare 
(if required) at the actual cost incurred. 
  
The Board agrees to pay the hourly rate charged for face-to-face Associate 
consultation time that is set forth in Addendum A, Additional Charges, if more than 
the total of eighty (80) hours of face-to-face Associate consultation time that are 
included in the base price above is required to complete the documents that comprise 
the Board’s Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and Policies, the Superintendent-
Approved Edition of the Administrative Procedures and the facilitation of Board 
Workshop Sessions. 
  

  

Page 246 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  26 

Board agrees to pay the hourly rate charged for processing documents that is set 
forth in Addendum A, Additional Charges, if more than the total of one hundred fifty 
(150) hours of processing that are included in the base price above is required to 
process the documents that comprise the Board’s Board-Adopted Edition of the 
Bylaws and Policies and the Superintendent-Approved Edition of the Administrative 
Procedures. 
  
Additionally, the Board agrees to pay, when invoiced, for the Associate’s expenses, 
including mileage at the current IRS rate, travel time, tolls, meals and lodging that 
are related to all meetings scheduled to complete the work described in V – The 
Bylaws and Policies Drafting Process and VI – The Administrative Procedures Drafting 
Process in this addendum and for meetings scheduled to complete the work related 
the update service described in Addendum C. 
  
The Board also agrees to pay, when invoiced, for the expenses of Mr. Thomas 
Wittmer, Esquire, Mrs. Annette Martinson, Mrs. Frances St. James, Mr. Thomas 
Young, III, Esquire, Mrs. Melinda McNichols, Mr. Patrick Corbett, and/or Ms. 
Amanda J. Clapp, Esquire when they attend drafting or update sessions. 

  
The Board must pay the current Annual Service Fee for digital publishing on the first 
anniversary of the date that Neola’s material is digitally published so the drafting 
process described in V – The Bylaws and Policies Drafting Process above can begin, 
and annually thereafter.  The first invoice amount will be prorated to August.  
Subsequent invoicing for this Annual Service Fee will be in August. 
  
Furthermore, the Board agrees to pay, within forty-five (45) days of receipt of an 
invoice, for additional products and services, as described herein, and for shipping 
and handling of all materials, as well as any additional services or materials 
requested by the Board. These charges are set forth in Addendum A. 
  
If Neola receives funds paid by Board under this Agreement that are in excess of the 
amount invoiced, Neola will promptly notify the Board. Any excess funds must be 
refunded to the Board promptly, but in every such instance within thirty (30) 
calendar days.  Excess funds paid by the Board as the result of Neola’s billing errors 
shall be refunded with interest calculated from the date of the erroneous payment 
or overpayment at the interest rate for judgments under F.S. 55.03, applicable at the 
time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made. 

  

  

Page 247 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  27 

Acknowledgement 
  

The undersigned acknowledge that this is an Addendum to a License Agreement 
with Neola, Inc. and by his/her signature, acknowledges his/her individual 

authority to bind his/her respective party to the duties and obligations defined 
herein. 
  

  

Clay County School Board                Neola, Inc. 

_______________________________________      _______________________________________ 
signature                                                signature 
  

Printed Name: _________________________ Amanda J. Clapp, Esquire 

Title:  Board Chair                                President/Board Chair 

Date:  _________________________________ Date:  ________________________________ 

 

Attest 

_______________________________________ 

signature 

Printed Name: _________________________ 

Title: Superintendent                              

Date:  _________________________________ 

  

  
  

Please note, this Agreement will be considered void if not executed by April 30, 2024 
  

  

Page 248 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  28 

 
A d d e n d u m  C  -  Up d a t e  S e r v i c e  

  
  

I. Frequency 

Neola may, at its sole discretion, prepare Update Templates corresponding to the 
Licensed Materials.  The Update Templates will be offered biannually to the Board 
through a Regular Update, which is a collection of Update Templates offered those 
Neola clients who maintain their Update Subscription.  The Update Templates may 
include, among other things, proposed revisions that Neola deems appropriate to 
address Federal or State legislation enacted since the publication of the immediately 
previous update, court decisions at the Federal or State level that may necessitate 
policy revision, and/or actions of agencies at either the Federal or State level that 
may necessitate policy revision as a result of their revised regulations, as well as best 
practices identified through Neola’s work with clients.  The proposed revisions, 
additions, or deletions contained within the Update Templates may collectively be 
referred to as “Edits.” 
  
Neola may also, at its sole discretion, prepare additional Update Templates and offer 
these templates to the Board through a Special Update, which may be offered when 
Neola deems that additional changes should be made to the Licensed Materials 
before the next Regular Update.  Neola is not obligated to provide any face-to-face 
consultation to the Board concerning Special Updates.  If the Board requests 
consultation regarding a Special Update, the Board shall pay Neola’s current rate as 
set forth in Addendum A for the face-to-face consultation. There will otherwise be no 
additional charge associated with Special Updates. 

  

I. Neola Associate(s) and Primary Contact 

The Primary Contact (Primary Contact) is identified in Addendum D. 
  
Mrs. Frances St. James will be the Associate designated to meet with the Primary 
Contact and any staff members that are selected to be involved in the process. 

  

II. Consultation Time 

For any Regular Update, Neola will provide up to four (4) hours of preparation time 
and consultation time. 
  
If more than four (4) hours of Associate time is required to complete any given 
update, then the Board shall pay Neola for the additional Associate time according 
to the fees set forth in Addendum A. 

  

III. Updating Licensed Material 

The Board-Adopted Edition of the Bylaws and Policies and Superintendent-Approved 
Edition of the Administrative Procedures will be updated as follows: 

  

  

Page 249 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  29 

Step 1: Releasing an Update 
  
Neola will notify the Board by email when the Update Templates have been 
posted to the Board’s BoardDocs site.  If the Board chooses to maintain a 
printed copy of the Licensed Materials, the Board or designee may print the 
Update Templates from their BoardDocs site.  At the Board’s request, Neola will 
produce a printed copy of the Update Templates at the cost set forth in 
Addendum A. 
  
Step 2: Reviewing the Update Templates 
  
The Primary Contact and the designated Neola associate will schedule a meeting 
at a mutually convenient time to discuss the Update Templates included in each 
Regular Update.  The Board or designee should review all Edits that are 
included in the Update Templates before meeting with the Neola associate.  The 
Primary Contact should also determine if any other Board staff should 
participate in the review of the Edits that are being proposed by Neola in the 
Regular Update. 
  
Step 3: Preparing Proposed Revisions for Board Consideration 
  
Unless other arrangements have been made (e.g., Neola Select), the Primary 
Contact will merge the Edits that are included in the Update Templates into the 
corresponding digital copies of the Board’s Licensed Materials by using the 
appropriate editing functions (e.g., the “track changes tool”, the “ordered lists 
tool”, et cetera in BoardDocs).  During, or after, the consultation with the Neola 
Associate, the Primary Contact and other staff at the discretion of the Primary 
Contact, will consider the Edits from the Regular Update and determine which 
will be recommended to the Board.  The edited version of the applicable 
Licensed Materials will be saved in the designated location on the Board’s 
BoardDocs platform. 
  
If, during this step, new materials are proposed in the Update Templates and 
the Board chooses to recommend adoption or approval of these new materials, 
the Primary Contact, and other Board staff as the Primary Contact deems 
appropriate, shall consider the new materials and make any required selections 
by using the appropriate editing functions (e.g., the “track changes tool”, 
“ordered list tool”, et cetera in BoardDocs).  The edited version of these new 
materials will be saved in the designated location on the Board’s BoardDocs 
platform. 

 
If the Update Templates include materials that the Board has chosen not to 
adopt or approve previously, but the Board chooses to recommend adoption or 
approval of these materials as a result of the Update, the Primary Contact, and 
other Board staff as the Primary Contact deems appropriate, shall consider the 
material from the Update Templates and make any required selections by using 
the appropriate editing functions (e.g., the “track changes tool”, “ordered lists 
tool”, et cetera in BoardDocs).  The edited versions of Templates that were 
previously not adopted or not approved will be saved in the designated location 
on the BoardDocs platform.               
  
If, during this step, the Board or designee makes substantive revisions beyond 
those Edits noted in the Update Templates, the revisions shall be considered 
Board-Specific Materials per Section V - License. 
  

Page 250 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  30 

If requested, the Associate will provide feedback, if need be, regarding the 
updated materials.  However, if the consultation time was used during the 
Associate’s review and the update meeting described in this step, the Board will 
be invoiced for the additional consultation time at the rate set forth in 
Addendum A. 
           

Step 4: Completing Step 3, If Necessary 
  
In the event that Step 3 is not completed during the face-to-face consultation, 
the Primary Contact, and other Board staff as the Primary Contact deems 
appropriate, will complete the process described in Step 3, and then save the 
updated materials within the designated location on the BoardDocs platform. 
  
The Primary Contact should notify the Associate that the updated materials 
have been saved in the designated location within BoardDocs so that the 
Associate can review the updated materials prior to presentation for adoption 
or approval. 
  
If requested, the Associate will provide feedback, if need be, regarding the 
updated materials.  However, if the consultation time was used during the 
Associate’s review and the update meeting described in this step, the Board will 
be invoiced for the additional consultation time at the rate set forth in 
Addendum A.  
  

Step 5: Adopting or Approving Updated Licensed Material 
  
The Board or designee must then seek appropriate adoption in the case of 
Bylaws and Polices, or the Superintendent’s approval in the case of 
Administrative Procedures, for the updated Licensed Materials. 

  

Step 6: Notifying Neola 
  

Upon obtaining the appropriate adoption or approval, the Board or designee 
must save the adopted or approved versions of the updated materials in the 
designated location on the BoardDocs platform, and then the Primary Contact 
shall email Neola’s Production Office to alert Neola of the adoption or approval 
of the materials and provide Neola of the date of the adoption of the updated 
Bylaws and Policies and/or the date of the approval of the updated 
Administrative Procedures. 

  

Step 7: Publishing the Revised Licensed Material 
  

Upon receiving notification required by Step 6, Neola will accept the Edits and 
make any necessary corrections to the formatting of the material, and then 
Neola will publish the updated Licensed Materials on the BoardDocs platform.  
Neola will also archive the previous version of the Licensed Materials, with 
appropriate date designations, and publish these retired materials through the 
appropriate mechanism within the BoardDocs web portal. 
  

IV. Costs and Payment Obligations for the Update Service 

The cost of the Update Service is $2,3600.00 per Regular Update, or $4,720.00 per 
year, as of the date that this License Agreement and its Addenda are to be executed.  
As noted herein, the fee for the Update Service may be increased at Neola’s discretion 
with prior notice to the Board as stipulated on Addendum A. 

Page 251 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  31 

  
As indicated in Addenda B, the Board will receive benefit of three (3) Regular Updates 
as part of the Development Services described in Addendum B.  However for these 
three (3)  Regular updates, the Board shall pay, when invoiced by Neola, for the 
Associate’s expenses that are related to the update visits, including travel time, 
mileage at the current IRS rate, meals at the rate set forth in Addendum A, tolls, 
parking, lodging and airfare (if required) at the actual cost incurred, and for 
preparation time and consulting time that exceeds the four (4) hours of preparation 
time and consultation time provided for the Update Service at the hourly rate for the 
additional consultation at the hourly rate set forth in Addendum A. 
  
Beginning with the fourth (4th) Regular Update published after the work described in 
V – The Bylaws and Policies Drafting Process of Addendum B begins, Neola will 
invoice the Board for the Update Service upon the release of each update in each 
subsequent year, and the Board shall pay the invoice within forty-five (45) days of 
receipt. 
  
If the Board requests additional face-to-face consultation from the Associate for any 
Regular Update, or face-to-face consultation for any Special Update, then the Board 
shall be invoiced for the additional time and for any costs incurred by the Associate 
to provide that consultation - such as, driving time (at Neola’s established rate), 
travel time, mileage (at the current IRS rate), meals (if required) at the rate set forth 
in Addendum A, and the actual costs of tolls, parking, and lodging (if required). 
  
For any Regular Update, Neola will provide up to four (4) hours of processing so that 
the updated Bylaws and Policies can be processed after Board adoption, and so that 
the updated Administrative Procedures can be processed after appropriate approval.  
If more than four (4) hours are required to process the respective updated Licensed 
Materials, the Board shall pay Neola’s hourly rate for processing as set forth in 
Addendum A for any additional processing time. 
  
Furthermore, the Board shall pay Neola, within forty-five (45) days of being invoiced, 
for additional products and services and for shipping and handling of all materials 
related to the Regular Update service, as well as any additional services or materials 
requested by the Board the fees set forth in Addendum A.  
  
Additionally, the Board shall pay, when invoiced by Neola, for the expenses of the 
designated Associate(s) that are related to visits provided for an update, including 
mileage at the current IRS rate, meals at the rate set forth in Addendum A, tolls, 
parking, lodging and airfare (if required) at the actual cost incurred, and for 
preparation time and consultation time that exceeds the four (4) hours of preparation 
and consultation provided for the Update Service at the hourly rate for the additional 
face-to-face consultation at the hourly rate set forth in Addendum A.  
  

  

Page 252 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  32 

Furthermore, the Board agrees to pay, when invoiced, within forty-five (45) days for 
additional products and services and for shipping and handling of all materials, as 
well as any additional services or materials requested by the Board these charges 
are set forth in Addendum A. 

  
During the term of this Agreement, the Board shall pay the usual and customary 
rate for processing documents, as set forth in Addendum A, for requests made by 
the Board for changes to the Licensed Materials that are not associated with a 
Regular or Special Update. 
  
Lastly, the Board must continue to pay, when invoiced each August, the current 
Annual Service Fee for digitally publishing the Board’s Licensed Materials. 

  

V. Termination of the Update Service 

As provided in Section VII – Termination in the License Agreement, the Board may 
cancel the Update Service by providing written notice. 

  

Page 253 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  33 

Acknowledgment 
 

The undersigned acknowledge that this is an Addendum to a License Agreement 
with Neola, Inc. and by his/her signature, acknowledges his/her individual 

authority to bind his/her respective party to the duties and obligations defined 

herein. 
  

  

Clay County School Board                Neola, Inc. 

_______________________________________      _______________________________________ 
signature                                                signature 
  

Printed Name: _________________________ Amanda J. Clapp, Esquire 

Title:  Board Chair                                President/Board Chair 

Date:  _________________________________ Date:  ________________________________ 

 

Attest 

_______________________________________ 

signature 

Printed Name: _________________________ 

Title: Superintendent                              

Date:  _________________________________ 

  

  
  

Please note, this Agreement will be considered void if not executed by April 30, 2023 
  

 
  

Page 254 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  34 

 

A d d e n d u m  D  
D i s t r i c t  D e s i g n e e s  a n d  C o n t a c t  I n f o r m a t i o n  
 

 

Name Title    

Phone   Email    

◻ Primary Contact ◻ Site Administrator ◻ IT Contact ◻ Billing Contact 

 

Name Title    

Phone   Email    

◻ Primary Contact ◻ Site Administrator ◻ IT Contact ◻ Billing Contact 

 

Name Title    

Phone   Email    

◻ Primary Contact ◻ Site Administrator ◻ IT Contact ◻ Billing Contact 

 

Name Title    

Phone   Email    

◻ Primary Contact ◻ Site Administrator ◻ IT Contact ◻ Billing Contact 

 

Name Title    

Phone   Email    

◻ Primary Contact ◻ Site Administrator ◻ IT Contact ◻ Billing Contact 

 

 
Site Administrator (Super Publisher) 
The staff member is designated to manage the District’s BoardDocs site regarding site setup and options, 
adding and removing users for accessing, viewing, and editing content. The District’s Site Administrator 
(Super Publisher) will be the primary contact with BoardDocs support. 
 
IT Staff Member 
The staff member is authorized to work with the Neola IT staff and BoardDocs staff to optimize the 
connection for working on Neola’s materials on the BoardDocs platform. 
 

Primary Contact 
The staff member is designated to coordinate the District’s work regarding the services for which the District 
has contracted under this License Agreement with Neola, including, but not limited to, assigning tasks 
to the District staff, serving as the primary contact for the designated Neola Associates, and 
communicating with Neola’s Production Office. 
 
Billing Contact 
The staff member is designated to coordinate with Neola’s Accounting department to make payments 
under this License Agreement. 

 

 

Page 255 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  35 

 

A d d e n d u m  E  –  C E R T I F I C A T I O N  RE G A RD I NG  

D E B A RM E NT ,  S US P E NS I O N ,  I NT E L I G I B I L I T Y  
A ND  V O L UNT A RY  E XC L US I O N  –  L O W E R  T I E R  

C O V E RE D  T RA NS A C T I O NS  
 

 
This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, 
Executive Order 12689, and 31 U.S.C. 6101; Debarment and Suspension, 2 CFR Part 417, 
Subpart C, Responsibilities of Participants Regarding Transactions Doing Business with Other 
Persons. 

(Please read instructions below before completing Certification) 
  

(1) The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that 

neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 

Federal department or agency. 

 

(2) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements 

in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this 

proposal.  

ORGANIZATION NAME:  Neola, Inc. 
  
SPONSOR AGREEMENT NUMBER OR PROJECT NAME: Bylaw, Policy and Procedure 

Development 
  
NAME(S) AND TITLE(S) OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE(S): Amanda J. Clapp, 
President 
  
SIGNATURE(S) ______________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE _____________________ 

  
1. By signing and submitting this form, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification above in 

accordance with these instructions. 
 

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly 
rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including 
suspension and/or debarment. 

 
3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal 

is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 

4. The terms " covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," 
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used 
in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing 
Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in 
obtaining a copy of those regulations. 
 

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this form that, should the proposed covered 

transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person 

who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated. 

 
6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this form that it will include this clause titled 

''Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered 

Transactions,'' without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier 

covered transactions. 

 

Page 256 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  36 

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier 

covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered 

transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and 

frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, 

check the Nonprocurement List. 

 
8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to 

render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is 
not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business 
dealings. 
 

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered 

transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available 

to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue 

available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.  

 

  

Page 257 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  37 

 

A d d e n d u m  F  
CLAY SCHOOL BOARD PUBLIC RECORDS ADDENDUM 
 

  

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES. Section 119.0701(1)(a), F.S. defines a “contractor” as “an individual, 
partnership, corporation, or business entity that enters into a contract for services with 
a public agency and is acting on behalf of the public agency as provided under s. 
119.011(2).” To the extent CONTRACTOR fits within the foregoing definition, pursuant 
to Section 119.0701, F.S., CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all public records laws, 
specifically to: 
  
A. Keep and maintain public records required by the School Board to perform the 

service. 

 

1. The timeframes and classifications for records retention requirements must be in 

accordance with the General Records Schedule GS1-SL for State and Local 

Government Agencies and GS7 for Public Schools. (See 

http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-

records-schedules) 

 

2. Records include all documents, papers, letters, maps, books, tapes, photographs, 

films, sound recordings, data processing software, or other material, regardless 

of the physical form, characteristics, or means of transmission, made or received 

pursuant to law or ordinance or in connection with the transaction of official 

business with the School Board. Contractor’s records under this Agreement 

include but are not limited to supplier/subcontractor invoices and contracts, 

project documents, meeting notes, emails and all other documentation generated 

during this Agreement. 

 
B. Upon request from the School Board’s custodian of public records, provide the 

School Board with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be 

inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost 

provided for by law. If a Contractor does not comply with the School Board’s request 

for records, School Board shall enforce the provisions in accordance with the 

contract. 

 

C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 

records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for 

the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract if the 

Contractor does not transfer the records to School Board. 

  

Page 258 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  38 

D. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the School Board all public 

records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required 

by the School Board to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all public 

records to the School Board upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall 

destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 

from public records disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains 

public records upon the completion of the contract, the Contractor shall meet all 

applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records kept electronically 

must be provided to the School Board, upon request from the School Board’s 

custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information 

technology systems of the School Board. 

 

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 

OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S 

DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS 

CONTRACT, CONTACT THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, 

CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 

  
  

Name: 

Title:  

Address: 

Email: 

Phone Number: 

 
A Contractor who fails to provide the public records to the School Board within a 
reasonable time may also be subject to penalties under Section 119.10, Florida Statutes. 
  
 Approved:  _______________  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 259 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  39 

 

A d d e n d u m  G  –  S T A T E  O F  F L O R I D A  V E ND O R  
C E RT I F I C A T I O N  RE G A RD I N G  E - V E R I F Y  
 

  

  
Respondent Vendor Name: Neola, Inc. 
  
Vendor FEIN: 34-1286532        
  
Vendor's Authorized Representative Name and Title: Amanda J. Clapp, President 
  
Address: 3914 Clock Pointe Trail, Ste. 103 
  
City: Stow State: Ohio   ZIP: 44224 
  
Phone Number: 330-926-0514 
  
Email Address: clappaj@neola.com 

  

Contractor hereby certifies compliance with the following: 

Pursuant to § 448.095(2) Florida Statutes (2020), Contractor shall register with and use 

the E-Verify system operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security to 

verify the work authorization status of all new employees hired by Contractor prior to 

entering into a Contract involving labor or providing goods or services to the Clay County 

School - District (CCSD) or Clay County School - Board (CCSB).  CCSD or CCSB may 

request or require evidence of registration with E-Verify.  Contractor shall also include 

in any related subcontracts a requirement that subcontractors performing labor or 

providing goods or services for CCSD or CCSB on its behalf, register with and use the 

E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all new employees hired by 

the subcontractor while performing labor or providing goods or services for CCSD or 

CCSB.  Additionally, Contractor shall include in any related subcontracts a requirement 

that subcontractors performing labor or providing goods or services for CCSD or CCSB 

on its behalf provide Contractor with an affidavit stating that the subcontractor does 

not employ, contract with, or subcontract with any unauthorized alien as defined in 8 

U.S.C. § 1324a(h)(3).  Contractor shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration 

of its contract with CCSD or CCSB and will furnish a copy of such affidavit as may be 

required or requested.  Further, it is understood and accepted that a Contract may be 

terminated for failure to comply with the requirements of § 448.095 Florida Statutes 

and the Contractor shall be ineligible for award for a period of at least one (1) year. 

  

Certified By:  ______________________________________________ 
                       AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

  
Print Name and Title: Amanda J. Clapp, President 
  
Date:______________________________                                    
 

  

Page 260 of 314

DRAFT



 

 ©Neola, Inc. 2019 V1FL  40 

  

A d d e n d u m  H  –  S T A T E  O F  F L O R I D A  V E ND O R  
C E RT I F I C A T I O N  RE G A RD I N G  S C RUT I N I Z E D  

C O M P A N I E S  L I S T S  
 

 
  

  
Respondent Vendor Name: Neola, Inc. 
  
Vendor FEIN: 34-1286532 
  
Vendor's Authorized Representative Name and Title: Amanda J. Clapp, President 
  
Address: 3914 Clock Pointe Trail, Ste. 103 
  
City: Stow State: Ohio       ZIP: 44224 
  
Phone Number: 330-926-0514 
  
Email Address: clappaj@neola.com 
 

  

Section 287.135, Florida Statutes prohibits or limits agencies from contracting with 

companies, for goods or services, that are participating in a boycott of Israel, are on the 

Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel list, the Scrutinized Companies with 

Activities in Sudan List, the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum 

Energy Sector List, or has been engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. Both 

lists are created pursuant to Section 215.473, Florida Statutes. 

As the person authorized to sign on behalf of Respondent, I hereby certify that the 

company identified above in the sector entitled "Respondent Vendor Name" is not 

participating in a boycott of Israel, is not listed on the Scrutinized Companies that 

Boycott Israel List, the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or the 

Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List and has 

not been engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. I understand that pursuant 

to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the submission of false certification may subject 

company to civil penalties, attorney's fees, and/or costs. 

 

  

Certified By:  ______________________________________________ 
                       AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

  
Print Name and Title: Amanda J. Clapp, President 
  
Date:______________________________  

 

 

Page 261 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Prequalification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 3.7.24

Page 262 of 314

DRAFT



SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Michael Kemp, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Blackwater Construction Services, 
LLC 

General Contractor $4,000,000.00 March 31, 2025 

Foresight Construction Group, Inc. General Contractor $15,000,000.00 March 31, 2025 

Gateway Contracting, Inc. General, Mechanical and 
Plumbing Contractor 

$15,000,000.00 March 31, 2025 

Gary S. Bailey, Inc. Building Contractor $3,000,000.00 March 31, 2025 

Life Safety Designs, Inc. Alarm System Contractor $10,000,000.00 March 31, 2025 

Register Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. General and Roofing 
Contractor 

$10,000,000.00 March 31, 2024 

Security and Fire Electronics, Inc. Electrical and Alarm System 
Contractor 

$750,000.00 March 31, 2025 

STG Contracting Group, Inc. General Contractor $70,000,000.00 March 31, 2025 

The Rose Group, LLC General Contractor $300,000.00 March 31, 2025 

Thorne Metal Systems, Inc. Roofing Contractor  $4,000,000.00 March 31, 2025 

 

Page 263 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Middleburg High School Restroom Renovations Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Work Plan. The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055. The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today. The Bid Opening was held February
13, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. The project had four (4) qualified bidders.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Renovation of Middleburg High School restrooms.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Thomas May Construction Company, the low bidder meeting specifications in the base bid
amount of $350,907.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Contract for MHS Restroom Renovations

Page 264 of 314

DRAFT



Page 265 of 314

DRAFT



Page 266 of 314

DRAFT



Page 267 of 314

DRAFT



Page 268 of 314

DRAFT



Page 269 of 314

DRAFT



Page 270 of 314

DRAFT



Page 271 of 314

DRAFT



Page 272 of 314

DRAFT



Page 273 of 314

DRAFT



Page 274 of 314

DRAFT



Page 275 of 314

DRAFT



Page 276 of 314

DRAFT



Page 277 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Wilkinson Junior High School Fire Alarm
Replacement

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Wilkinson Junior High School Fire
Alarm Replacement.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director, Facility Planning and Construction (904) 336-6824,michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan for $500,000.00.  The architect’s cost estimate is $500,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 278 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Lakeside Junior High School Restroom/Locker Room Renovations Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Work Plan. The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held February
8, 2024 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had two (2) qualified bidders. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Completion of Lakeside Junior High School Restroom/Locker Room Renovations.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, Gary Bailey, Inc., the base bid in the amount of
$719,411.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

LSJ Restroom.Locker Room Renovations Contract.pdf

Page 279 of 314

DRAFT



Page 280 of 314

DRAFT



Page 281 of 314

DRAFT



Page 282 of 314

DRAFT



Page 283 of 314

DRAFT



Page 284 of 314

DRAFT



Page 285 of 314

DRAFT



Page 286 of 314

DRAFT



Page 287 of 314

DRAFT



Page 288 of 314

DRAFT



Page 289 of 314

DRAFT



Page 290 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Classroom Addition Oakleaf Junior High School Construction Manager Contract Award

Description
The process to appoint a Construction Manager At-Risk for the purposes of conducting preconstruction services and constructing
the classroom addition at Oakleaf Junior High School is in accordance with the State Requirements for Educational Facilities
(SREF), Florida Statutes, and Board Policy.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
With Construction Manager At-Risk, the district benefits by having the contractor available during the design process to validate
cost estimates and value engineer design details, which in turn streamlines the construction schedule. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Appoint D.E. Scorpio Corporation as Construction Manager At-Risk for the construction services for the Classroom Addition at
Oakleaf Junior High at a fee not to exceed 0.25% for preconstruction services and 4.5% for construction services.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The District’s estimated construction cost is $18,000,000.00.  The fee for Construction Manager At-Risk ($45,000.00
preconstruction (0.25%); $810,000.00 construction services (4.5%)) will be based upon the final GMP (Guaranteed Maximum
Price) for the Classroom Addition at Oakleaf Junior High School.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 291 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Classroom Addition Lake Asbury Junior High School Construction Manager Contract Award

Description
The process to appoint a Construction Manager At-Risk for the purposes of conducting preconstruction services and constructing
the classroom addition at Lake Asbury Junior High School is in accordance with the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF), Florida Statutes, and Board Policy.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
With Construction Manager At-Risk, the district benefits by having the contractor available during the design process to validate
cost estimates and value engineer design details, which in turn streamlines the construction schedule. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Appoint Parrish McCall as Construction Manager At-Risk for the construction services for the Classroom Addition at Lake
Asbury Junior High at a fee not to exceed 0.25% for preconstruction services and 4.5% for construction services.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The District’s estimated construction cost is $18,000,000.00.  The fee for Construction Manager At-Risk ($45,000.00
preconstruction (0.25%); $810,000.00 construction services (4.5%)) will be based upon the final GMP (Guaranteed Maximum
Price) for the Classroom Addition at Lake Asbury Junior High School.

Review Comments

Attachments

CCSD LAJ Classroom Addition - CM Contract PMC Signed.pdf

Page 292 of 314

DRAFT



Page 293 of 314

DRAFT



Page 294 of 314

DRAFT



Page 295 of 314

DRAFT



Page 296 of 314

DRAFT



Page 297 of 314

DRAFT



Page 298 of 314

DRAFT



Page 299 of 314

DRAFT



Page 300 of 314

DRAFT



Page 301 of 314

DRAFT



Page 302 of 314

DRAFT



Page 303 of 314

DRAFT



Page 304 of 314

DRAFT



Page 305 of 314

DRAFT



Page 306 of 314

DRAFT



Page 307 of 314

DRAFT



Page 308 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Annual Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) Certification

Description
In accordance with Florida Statutes 1013.31 and State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) Section 6.1, annually,
prior to April 1st, each school district must review the Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) and certify that it is current
and accurate to the Office of Educational Facilities.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The School Board approved prior years’ certifications.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the certification of the 2024 FISH data.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approval of the certification of the 2024 FISH data.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Lance Addison, Coordinator of Planning & Intergovernmental Affairs, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

FISH Certification 2024.pdf

Page 309 of 314

DRAFT



Page 310 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C28 - Clay High School Parking Lot Renovation/Redesign Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Work Plan. The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055. The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today. The Bid Opening was held February
27, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. The project had _______ (__) qualified bidders.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Renovation of Clay High School Parking Lot.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to _______________, the low bidder meeting specifications in the base bid amount of
$______________.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 311 of 314

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 7, 2024 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C29 - Change Order #3 for Clay High School Gym Renovations

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This change order is for the following: materials and labor to provide and upgrade
wall mount emergency type light fixtures required by code, install receptacles in the base of new lockers, install glass for two
doors, and install doors and associated hardware.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #3

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $19,193.77. Architect fees, contracted at 8.82%, will increase by
$1,692.89 as a result of this change order.  These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

CO #3 CHS Gym Renovations.pdf

Page 312 of 314

DRAFT



Page 313 of 314

DRAFT



Page 314 of 314

DRAFT


